
 
 

 
Washington State Department of Enterprise Services Page 1 of 1 

Capitol Campus Design Advisory Committee 
Alex Rolluda (Chair, Architect-1), Dan Miles (Vice Chair, Architect-2), 

Secretary of State Kim Wyman, Senator Sam Hunt, Senator Timothy Sheldon, Representative Vicki Kraft, 
Representative Beth Doglio, Chris Jones (Landscape Architect) and Marc Daily (Urban Planner) 

 

REMOTE ACCESS MEETING 
PLEASE ACCESS THE MEETING VIA THE FOLLOWING LINK: 

https://des-wa.zoom.us/j/98196260283 
Passcode: 970460 

 

SEPTEMBER 17,  2020 
 

Time Agenda Items Presenter Desired Outcome 
 

10:00 1- Call Meeting to Order Alex Rolluda,  
2020 Chair 

General Announcements; and 
Approval of the Agenda 

10:02 2- Approval of Minutes  Alex Rolluda,  
2020 Chair 

Action: CCDAC review and action on 
the Feb 20 CCDAC Meeting minutes. 

10:05 3- Review of SCC Policies 
and Procedures, and Work 
Group to review SCC statutes 

Bill Frare, DES Informational- DES will provide an 
overview of recent SCC actions and 
next steps.  

10:15 4- Insurance Commissioner 
Office Building Predesign 

Bill Frare, DES Action- Review and formulate 
recommendation on predesign 
alternatives and findings. 

10:45 5- Legislative Campus 
Modernization (or formerly 
Newhouse Predesign) 

Bill Frare, DES Informational- DES will provide a 
status update on predesign efforts, 
and seek input from CCDAC. 

11:05 6- Tumwater Modular Building 
Predesign 

Bill Frare, DES Action- Review and formulate 
recommendation on predesign 
alternatives and findings. 

11:25 7- Capital Projects Update 
 

Bill Frare, DES Informational- DES will provide a 
status update on key capital projects. 

11:40 8- Update on 2021-23 Capital  
Planning Process 

Bill Frare, DES Informational- DES will provide an 
update and next steps. 

11:45 9- Public Comments Alex Rolluda,  
2020 Chair 

Informational- Public comments to 
CCDAC. 

12:00 10- Adjourn CCDAC Meeting Alex Rolluda,  
2020 Chair 

 

 
Upcoming Committee Meetings Schedule: 
Next SCC Meeting (2020 Qtr3): Thursday, Oct 15, 2020; 10AM-12PM (Remote meeting) 
Next CCDAC Meeting (2020 Qtr4): Thursday, Nov 05, 2020; 10AM-12PM (Remote meeting) 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 



CAPITOL CAMPUS DESIGN ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 
Regular Meeting 

1500 Jefferson Street, Room 2208 
Olympia, Washington 98504 

February 20, 2020 
10:00 a.m.  

Draft Minutes 

MEMBERS PRESENT: MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Alex Rolluda, (Chair) Architect Representative Beth Doglio 
Dan Miles, (Vice Chair) Architect Senator Sam Hunt 
Marc Daily, Urban Planner Representative Vicki Kraft 
Chris Jones, Landscape Architect Kim Wyman, Secretary of State 
Senator Timothy Sheldon 

OTHERS PRESENT: 
Kevin Dragon, Department of Enterprise Services Chris Liu, Department of Enterprise Services 
Bill Frare, Department of Enterprise Services Nouk Leap, Department of Enterprise Services 
Tessa Gardner-Brown, Floyd|Snider Carrie Martin, Department of Enterprise Services 
Marygrace Godden, Department of Enterprise Services Rachel Newman, S. Capitol Neighborhood Assn. 
Jeff Gonzalez, Department of Enterprise Services Karen Parkhurst, Thurston Reg. Planning Council 
Valerie Gow, Puget Sound Meeting Services Jennifer Reynolds, Department of Enterprise Services 
Rose Hong, Department of Enterprise Services Steve Shanewise, Citizen 
Majid Jamali, Department of Enterprise Services    Bob Willyerd, Department of Enterprise Services 
Linda Kent, Department of Enterprise Services    John Wynands, Department of Transportation 

Welcome and Introductions, Announcements & Approval of Agenda 
Chair Alex Rolluda called the Capitol Campus Design Advisory Committee (CCDAC) to order at 10:01 
a.m.  A quorum of the CCDAC was present.

Members provided self-introduction.  

Chair Rolluda recognized Marc Daily.  Mr. Daily was appointed in October 2019 by Department of 
Enterprise Services (DES) Director Chris Liu to fill the committee’s Urban Planner position.  Mr. Daily 
has over 20 years experience in urban and environmental planning in the private and public sector.  Mr. 
Daily serves as the Executive Director for Thurston Regional Planning Council (TRPC) in Olympia.  
The agency’s emphasis is on transportation and land use planning to benefit the Council’s 22 members. 
Prior to joining TRPC, Mr. Daily served as the Deputy Director of Washington Puget Sound Partnership 
(PSP), a state agency leading the region’s collective effort to restore and protect Puget Sound.  During 
his tenure with PSP, Mr. Daily served as Acting Director for one year and as a member of Governor 
Inslee’s Executive Cabinet.  

Chair Rolluda acknowledged Senator Timothy Sheldon as a new member.  Senator Sheldon reported he 
lives on Hood Canal and has been a member of the Legislature for 30 years.    

Chair Rolluda noted the absence of Secretary of State Kim Wyman, Senator Sam Hunt, Representative 
Vicki Kraft, and Representative Beth Doglio because of other conflicting commitments. 

NOTE: These Draft Minutes of
Meeting are subject to change upon 
approval of CCDAC at their next
regularly schedule meeting.

DRAFT



CCDAC MEETING MINUTES- DRAFT 
February 20, 2020 

Page 2 of 15 
 
 
 
Chair Rolluda reviewed the agenda topics:  Review and approve November 7, 2019 minutes; receive a 
progress update on Capitol Lake Deschutes Estuary Long Range Management Plan EIS, an update on 
the next steps for the East Plaza Phase 5B project; a presentation on regional transportation planning 
underway in Thurston County; and an update on DES capital projects. 
 
The agenda was accepted as presented. 
 
Approval of November 7, 2019 CCDAC Minutes - Action 
Chris Jones moved, seconded by Dan Miles, to approve the CCDAC meeting minutes of November 
7, 2019 as published.  Motion carried unanimously.    
 
Capitol Lake –Deschutes Estuary, Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) Project Update - 
Information 
Chair Rolluda recognized Carrie Martin, DES Project Manager, and Tessa Gardner-Brown with 
Floyd|Snider. 
 
Project Manager Martin introduced Tessa Gardner-Brown, Project Manager with Floyd|Snider.  Ms. 
Gardner-Brown updated the committee on the status of the Capitol Lake-Deschutes Estuary 
Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) project.  
 
Ms. Gardner-Brown reviewed the project process map developed to measure progress.  The map reflects 
various tracks that serve as the key foundations of work underway to develop a long-term management 
plan and preferred alternative for Capitol Lake.  The EIS is the technical work that will assist the team in 
providing information on the impacts and benefits of the preferred alternative.  The map tracks 
engagement by the various Work Groups, (Executive, Technical, and Funding & Governance), decision-
making bodies, and the community.   
 
Progress on the EIS includes: 
 
• Completed bathymetric survey of Capitol Lake in January 2020 

- Targeted completion was April 2019, but survey delayed because of the Olympia Brewery oil 
spill cleanup 

- Attempted a July 2019 survey but abandoned because of environment conditions 
- Reconnaissance in December 2019 revealed dense vegetation that would affect data quality 
- Work was adjusted to proceed with other tasks that were not reliant on the bathymetric survey 
- When conditions improved in January 2020, bathymetric surveying and data collection were 

completed.  The survey is important for several reasons: 
 Data informs numerical modeling of hydrodynamics and sediment transport 

 Numerical modeling informs a variety of technical disciplines - sea level rise, 
wetlands and vegetation, and economics  
 

The Draft EIS is targeted for completion by mid-2021 with the Final EIS with the Preferred Alternative 
scheduled for completion in 2022.  The project team developed a measurable evaluation process to screen 
concepts and optimize alternatives.   
 
The team developed an initial version of optimized alternatives by screening a range of concepts and 
alternative components for those that best meet project goals using objective screening criteria.  One 
example is how the public and stakeholders, as well as previous environmental studies proposed various 

DRAFT



CCDAC MEETING MINUTES- DRAFT 
February 20, 2020 

Page 3 of 15 
 
 
ways to achieve project goals, such as creating an 80-foot estuary opening versus a 500-foot estuary 
opening or boring through existing structures to enable tidal flows.  The project team evaluated those 
options in the context of achieving project goals and selected those to move forward in developing an 
optimized alternative.  The results of the measurable evaluation process identified the following 
alternatives: 
 
• A Managed Lake Alternative assumes initial and maintenance dredging in the north basin only.  The 

proposal does not include dredging the south basin or the middle basin.  The proposal to dredge the 
north basin is economically and environmentally sustainable.  Dredged materials from the initial 
maintenance dredging would be used within the project system to develop habitat islands within the 
middle basin to transition the middle basin to freshwater wetlands much like the conditions of the 
south basin today.  The option includes implementation of an adaptive management plan or habitat 
enhancement plan to ensure those ecological functions are maintained.  Boardwalks would be 
constructed in the south and middle basins adjacent to the habitat features with the primary goal to 
restore active recreation, boating, and fishing within the project area. 

 
Senator Sheldon inquired as to the projected depth of a managed lake alternative.  Ms. Gardner-Brown 
advised that the elevation within the middle basin would vary with the highest elevation of +16 feet 
equitable to the elevation of Deschutes Parkway.  That depth enables a range of habitat species.  In the 
north basin, the average water depth would be six feet after dredging. 
 
Chair Rolluda asked how relocated sediment would be prevented from migrating to the basin.  Ms. 
Gardner-Brown reported the process for creating habitat islands would be similar to the process used for 
establishing the Capitol Lake Interpretative Park.  Dredge material from the Heritage Park area in the late 
1990s was deposited to develop habitat areas.  Over time, as sediment settles, water is released to compact 
sediment.  The addition of plantings will aid in containment.  Within the middle basin, sheet pilings will 
help in forming the habitat islands and enable water to separate to the top with sediment consolidating at 
the bottom.  Water would then be discharged from the islands to the lake following the plantings and 
removal of the sheets.   
 
• The Estuary Alternative includes dredging the middle and north basin.  Dredge materials would be 

configured to develop the main channel to mimic the historic main channel prior to the dam.  
Dredged materials would be used to develop a salt-tolerant shoreline.  The 5th Avenue Dam would 
be removed and replaced with a 500-foot opening.  Following restoration of the area, future 
maintenance dredging would be targeted to West Bay areas.  An adaptive management plan would 
guide maintenance of ecological functions and development of a boardwalk within the south and 
middle basins.  Boating and fishing would be restored.   

 
Ms. Gardner-Brown displayed a graphic depicting water elevation during tidal cycles.   
 
• The Hybrid Alternative has the same components as the Estuary Alternative except for a 45-acre 

reflecting saltwater pool.  A multimodal trail would be developed on the reflecting pool retaining 
wall.  An adaptive management plan would be developed to ensure water quality was maintained in 
the reflecting pool.   

 
The alternatives represent a snapshot in time following the completion of the measurable evaluation 
process.  Throughout the technical analysis, it is understood that as new and relevant information is 

DRAFT



CCDAC MEETING MINUTES- DRAFT 
February 20, 2020 

Page 4 of 15 
 
 
discovered, some factors within the three alternatives might require refinement or adjustment.  Any 
changes to the alternatives would also include updates to stakeholders.    
Mr. Daily noted that a number of the presentation slides speak to project goals.  He asked for the source 
of information identifying project goals.  Ms. Gardner-Brown advised that DES worked with stakeholders 
as part of Phase 1 efforts in 2016 to develop a mutually agreeable Purpose and Need Statement 
representative of all interests.  The Purpose and Need Statement is included in the Phase 1 Report, which 
is posted on the project website located at www.capitollakedeschutesestuaryeis.org.  Mr. Daily asked 
whether the Purpose and Need Statement and project goals are synonymous.  Ms. Gardner-Brown 
affirmed that they were.    
 
Ms. Gardner-Brown reported in September 2019, a joint meeting was held with the Executive Work 
Group (EWG) and the Funding and Governance Work Group to ensure the EWG had a thorough 
understanding of the economic foundation to develop a shared funding and governance model for costs 
relative to construction and long-term maintenance of the preferred alternative.  Funding and governance 
options were reviewed in addition to soliciting early input for the project team.  At that meeting, EWG 
members committed to exploring potential funding or providing joint funding for the work of the Funding 
and Governance Work Group. 
 
In November 2019, the Funding and Governance Work Group engaged in a series of exercises to discuss 
beneficiaries of the alternative components and potential responsibilities, roles, and cost sharing, which is 
directly tied to foundations developed during Phase 1 identifying entities benefitting from the solution.  
Those entities, as participants, should contribute in paying for the cost, as well as those that contribute to 
the problem.   
 
Meetings of the EWG and the Technical Work Group were held in November 2019.  Members received a 
presentation on the schedule and optimized alternatives.  Discussion centered on clarifying components of 
the alternatives.  An overview of methodologies was provided on the some of the technical analyses.  The 
work group provided technical input on some of the assumptions.   
 
In quarters three and four, DES engaged in extensive outreach with legislative counterparts.  Following 
that coordination, the Office of Financial Management (OFM) and the Governor’s proposed supplemental 
budget included full funding for the project.  Key members of the Legislature representing the 22nd 
legislative district support the project and understand that completing the project is the lowest cost option 
rather than continual delay and restarts.  DES staff responded to many follow-up questions. 
 
Community engagement efforts remain a priority throughout the process.  The Community Sounding 
Board is comprised of 25 community members representing diverse interests.  The Board provides input 
to the project team throughout the process during structured meetings.  In September 2019, an online 
meeting was held with the group to provide updates on current project activities.  At a November 
meeting, members received a schedule update and reviewed the optimized alternatives.  During the 
meeting, members participated in a round robin sounding board to provide feedback.  Overall, feedback 
on the alternatives was positive, as well as some questions that the project team is exploring.  Members 
engaged in an exercise to provide feedback on viewpoints for the visual quality analysis.  Many 
community members have questioned the appearance of an estuary.  The visual quality analysis will 
provide simulations of what the change will resemble from actual viewpoints around the lake.  A number 
of viewpoints were selected through the exercise.   
 
The project includes a mailing list of approximately 5,000 email addresses.  The project team transmits 
quarterly updates to those addresses.   

DRAFT



CCDAC MEETING MINUTES- DRAFT 
February 20, 2020 

Page 5 of 15 
 
 
 
Mr. Miles asked about the availability of feedback received by the project team.  Ms. Gardner-Brown 
advised that all feedback is publicly available on the project’s website at DES.  Meeting notes from each 
work group and Community Sounding Board meeting capture the discussions.   
 
Ms. Gardner-Brown outlined next steps.  At the next briefing, the project team anticipates substantial 
completion of the technical analyses.  It is likely numerical modeling will be substantially complete.  The 
project team will collect sediment samples on Capitol Lake.  Once full funding for the project is 
confirmed, the team will begin remaining analysis for completion of the draft EIS, which is anticipated to 
be issued by mid-2021.   
 
Mr. Jones asked Ms. Gardner-Brown to speak to quality of salmon habitat with respect to each of the 
alternatives.  Ms. Gardner-Brown advised that the fish and wildlife impact analysis would provide 
answers to the question which will be addressed in the draft EIS.  The habitat design is modeled from 
other successful low marsh and salt marsh areas within Puget Sound.  Some studies from the tribe have 
assisted the project team in assessing and refining the design.  The intent is to provide good habitat for 
various salmonid species.   
 
Senator Sheldon asked whether the reflecting pool would maintain a consistent level of saltwater or be 
affected by tidal actions.  Ms Gardner-Brown explained that the current design includes tide gates 
enabling tidal actions in the pool.  Tidal action is important to maintain flushing of the system through the 
reflecting pool.  The tide gates would be set to maintain a six-foot water depth to promote recreational 
uses.   
 
Chair Rolluda asked how each alternative responds to sea level rise.  Ms Gardner-Brown said one of the 
scenarios in the numerical model accounts for conditions during sea level rise in the Capitol Lake basin.  
Additionally, sea level rise is reflected in some of the designs by setting the height of the retaining wall 
higher than the potential rise in water level.  Additionally, salt tolerant plants would be planted along the 
shoreline to accommodate any sea level rise.  The potential impacts of sea level rise will be addressed in 
the EIS as well.   
 
Chair Rolluda inquired about the timing for completion of the visual quality analysis.  Ms. Gardner-
Brown advised that the simulations would be included in the EIS.   
 
Chair Rolluda thanked Ms. Gardner-Brown for the update. 
 
East Plaza Water Infiltration Repairs (5B) – Information 
Chair Rolluda recognized Jeff Gonzalez, DES Project Manager. 
 
Manager Gonzalez updated members on the status of the East Plaza Water Infiltration Repairs project.  
He identified the project area on an aerial illustration of the East Plaza surrounded by the Department of 
Transportation and Employment Security Department Buildings.  Project team members include: 
 
• Jeff Gonzalez, Project Manager, DES 
• Bob Willyerd, Project Manager, DES (April 2020) 
• Jennifer Reynolds, Communications Manager, DES 
• Craig Gunn, Property Manager, DES 
• Brent Chapman, Grounds Operations Manager, DES 

DRAFT



CCDAC MEETING MINUTES- DRAFT 
February 20, 2020 

Page 6 of 15 
 
 
• Pete Andersen, Architect, Cornerstone Architecture Group 
• Neil Shaw, Project Manager Washington Patriot Construction 
• Rory Godinez, Superintendent, Washington Patriot Construction 
• Bogdan Tischenko, Project Engineer, Washington Patriot Construction   

 
The project was initiated because of failures in the waterproof membrane over the East Plaza Garage.  
Water penetrated and leaked through to the garage compromising the structure.  Construction on this 
portion of the project began in May 2019.  Landscaping and other upper plaza improvements were 
substantially completed in December 2019.  Mr. Gonzalez shared “before” and “after “photographs of the 
improvements.  Electrical improvements and lighting improvements within the garage are scheduled to 
begin in mid-March and continue through October 2020. 
 
The project was initiated as a phased project in 1996.  The first three phases were completed near OB2.  
The Phase 4 area was completed during the 2005-2007 biennium.  From 2008 to 2014, no additional 
repairs were completed.  The current project is Phase 5B.  Because of funding constraints in 2006, the 
project was segregated into six sub-phases to enable incremental achievement to replace the waterproof 
membrane.  This phase of work is consistent with the work started in 1997 as part of the guiding 
document for the East Plaza area.  Phase 5A included repairs to stair towers #1 and #8.  That work was 
completed in the 2015-2017 biennium.  The Phase 5B project was funded in the 2017-2019 biennium.   
 
The current project on the East Plaza was completed and included demolition of the existing plaza 
surface, replacement of the waterproof membrane, electrical improvements, and landscaping the plaza 
consistent with the landscape design for the East Capitol Campus.  Additional funding requests to 
complete remaining phases of the project will be submitted.    
 
The East Plaza Garage is nearly 50 years old.  The upper portion of the garage is the roof of the East 
Plaza with landscaping of trees, shrubs, gardens, ramps, and pathways.  The guiding document for the 
East Capitol Campus Plaza was developed in 1997 to guide the design and shape of the East Plaza.  The 
Phase 5 area design was completed in 2006.  The scope of Phase 5B included removal of trees, shrubs, 
grass, pavers, soil and planter walls down to the concrete roof deck, installation of new waterproofing 
membrane, drainage improvements, and installation of new walls with capstones, soil, trees, shrubs, 
grass, irrigation, walkways, and light fixtures.   
 
Project Manager Gonzalez displayed a series of aerial photographs of new landscaping.  During the 
design stage, the project team used a design previously developed by the landscape architect.  Other aerial 
photographs depicted views of East Plaza from the Washington State Department of Transportation 
Building and the Employment Security Department Building.  Immediately north between the new 
landscaping and the legislative dome are the Halprin fountains (Water Garden).   
 
Ongoing work includes some crack repair throughout the garage and additional electrical work to upgrade 
outdated electrical panels and improvements to garage lighting.  Work is scheduled to begin in mid-
March and continue through October.  The additional electrical work will have minimal impacts to 
parking with some parking stalls temporarily closed, similar to the work completed for drainage repairs.  
Some areas in the garage will experience lights dimmed to an emergency level as work progresses. 
 
Chair Rolluda asked whether additional pedestrian lighting was added along the pathways.  Project 
Manager Gonzalez confirmed approximately 12 new lights were added.     
 

DRAFT



CCDAC MEETING MINUTES- DRAFT 
February 20, 2020 

Page 7 of 15 
 
 
Project Manager Gonzalez noted the success of the project because of the team.  Each team member 
assumed a specific role and responsibility and conveyed tremendous mutual respect for the overall 
objective of completing a successful project.   
 
Bill Frare, Assistant Director, DES, added that the project was completed using the GC/CM delivery 
method.  He asked staff to describe the GC/CM process for the benefit of the committee and how the 
delivery method contributed to the success of the project. 
 
Project Manager Gonzalez referred to the traditional Design-Bid-Build process whereby an architect 
designs a project that is released for bid with the agency selecting the low bidder.  The low bidder reviews 
the plans and works with the architect on any changes required to the plan.  The GC/CM delivery method 
hires the contractor at the front-end of the project during design to help inform the design early when 
changes can be implemented to reduce potential work order changes that result in increased costs.  The 
GC/CM provides input during the process to include cost estimating to establish the foundation of actual 
costs, answers questions, and offers input on potential changes in the contract documents.  The project 
was on an accelerated schedule, which required earlier contracting, which is one reason GC/CM was 
selected for the project.  GC/CM is essentially an integrated project approach that can make a big 
difference in achieving a successful project.   
 
Chair Rolluda asked for an explanation of the GC/CM selection process.  Assistant Director Frare said the 
process is not a low-bid process.  It essentially involves procuring an architect or a design team in the 
same fashion as a traditional project.  However, immediately following the hiring of the architect, a 
Request for Proposal (RFP) is released for the contractor.  The contractor is selected partially on a 
qualifications-based method and partially on some of the fees within the contract.  The selection is not 
100% qualifications-based but relies on hiring the right contractor to form a successful team working 
together on an integrated design process.  The delivery method subscribes to a cooperative and 
collaborative team that lends itself to cost savings rather than placing everything on a priced-based 
process.  The GC/CM delivery method includes the contractor during the early stages of the design 
process enabling the contractor to answer early questions and provide estimates.  It is particularly 
important for projects involving an occupied building as scheduling is very important.  GC/CM is a good 
contracting methodology for existing buildings where many unknowns may exist behind the walls or 
under the foundation.  The contractor is able to complete some investigative work early in the process to 
inform the design by the architect.  The price of the contract follows specific rules within RCW 39.10 
stipulating what work the contractor can self-perform and work to be subcontracted.  In traditional 
Design-Bid-Build, a comprehensive plan set is developed with one bid date.  Under GC/CM, it is possible 
to release an early bid to complete the foundation work or a second bid to complete all infrastructure 
elements (electrical and utility work).  The contractor is able to bid against subcontractors while 
considering the low-bid incentive throughout the life of the contract.   
 
Mr. Jones asked about any surprises discovered during the removal of the roof membrane.  Project 
Manager Gonzalez said the early investigative work was very helpful.  However, as the membrane was 
removed, some surprises were discovered.  Some of the environmental work was more involved and 
required additional steps to clean up some of the environmental aspects of the project.  Additionally, a flat 
surface had been anticipated; however, the roof contained cells requiring a much more extensive 
installation of the new roof membrane than initially anticipated.  Additionally, drainage improvements 
were required as some of the drainage systems constructed in the early 70s were no longer operational or 
were only partially effective.  The GC/CM delivery method enables an open-book process with a specific 
budget with some contingencies for both the contractor and the agency.  At the conclusion of the project 

DRAFT



CCDAC MEETING MINUTES- DRAFT 
February 20, 2020 

Page 8 of 15 
 
 
any savings achieved is returned to the owner (agency).  The process entails a balance of managing the 
contingency and using the funds for wish list items or surprises. 
 
Mr. Jones said it appears EDAW, Inc. which completed the original East Capitol Campus Plaza – Plaza 
Program and schematic design ceased operations in 2009.  He asked how DES is ensuring the landscape 
design is followed and what entity will be reviewing the quality of work, especially as Phase 5C 
approaches involving the Halprin Fountain, a historical significant element.  He asked about the measures 
to be implemented to ensure the design vision is upheld by another landscape architect.  Project Manager 
Dragon responded that the DES Planning and Project Delivery Team serve as the oversight review of any 
proposal.  The agency’s 10-year plan includes a phased approach for the delivery and implementation.  
The landscape architect would be a member of the project team.  DES, CCDAC, SCC, and stakeholders 
would be engaged to ensure the project tracks with the original design. 
 
Project Manager Gonzalez added that previous design documents contain much detail that was used as the 
landscaping template.  DES Buildings and Grounds staff followed the template and any changes, such as 
the placement of trees only occurred when the area contained insufficient soil for trees.     
 
Project Manager Dragon noted that staff thoroughly vetted the original plans and used the plans for the 
bid.  However, when estimates documented extensive costs leading to difficulty in obtaining funds to 
construct the improvements, a phased approach was adopted.     
 
Mr. Daily asked about the specifics involving environmental mitigation.  Project Manager Gonzalez said 
the team discovered existing asbestos in some of the previous waterproofing, which required 
environmental technicians throughout the demolition process to perform various testing.   
 
Mr. Jones asked whether the drainage within the cells enabled water to drain through the slab into the 
garage.  Project Manager Gonzalez explained that there were weakened holes at the bottom of the cells, 
which interconnected the cells.  Those holes had become plugged.  With some of the contingency savings, 
new drains were installed in each of the cells.  The membrane removed was the original membrane.  
Much of the membrane had deteriorated.  The membrane also had exceeded its life expectancy. 
 
Senator Sheldon inquired about the number of parking spaces available in the Plaza Garage.  Project 
Manager Gonzalez estimated over 3,000 parking spaces are available between the different levels in the 
garage.    Assistant Director Frare offered to follow-up with the correct information.   
 
Mr. Jones asked about the number of employees working on Capitol Campus.  He was advised that 
approximately 6,000 employees work on the campus. 
 
Mr. Miles commented that structural codes have evolved considerably since the garage was constructed.  
He asked whether the overall weight of the new landscaping scheme was considered relative to the 
existing landscaping scheme to account for much larger loading requirements in today’s structural codes.  
Project Manager Gonzalez  affirmed those issues were addressed as it was very important to identify a 
soil type that had the proper characteristics to support landscaping but not impact the integrity of the 
Plaza Garage.  The project team worked with structural engineers, landscape architects, and soil scientists 
to develop a specific mix of soil to accommodate weight and provide sufficient support for trees and 
plants.   
 
Chair Rolluda asked about the disposition or disposal of existing pavers.  Project Manager Gonzalez said 
the pavers were removed and disposed.  Chair Rolluda asked whether the project team considered 

DRAFT



CCDAC MEETING MINUTES- DRAFT 
February 20, 2020 

Page 9 of 15 
 
 
adaptive reuse of the material.  Project Manager Gonzalez explained that most of the pavers were not in 
good condition.  Most of the area was covered with landscaping with a limited number of pavers.   
 
Chair Rolluda thanked Project Manager Gonzalez for the update. 
 
Chair Rolluda welcomed DES Director Liu to the meeting. 
  
WSDOT-TRPC Regional Transportation Planning – Information 
Chair Rolluda recognized John Wynands with WSDOT Olympic Region and Karen Parkhurst with 
Thurston Regional Planning Council (TRPC).  They will provide an overview of the regional 
transportation planning effort in Thurston County and the I-5 corridor near Capitol Campus. 
 
Karen Parkhurst reported she serves as the Planning and Policy Director at TRPC.  John Wynands said he 
serves as Region Administrator, Olympic Region, WSDOT, serving Clallam, Grays Harbor, Jefferson, 
Kitsap, Mason, Pierce and Thurston counties.  
 
Ms. Parkhurst provided some background on TRPC.  TRPC serves as a single county regional planning 
council as opposed to a multi-county council.  Membership is comprised of all cities and towns in 
Thurston County, Intercity Transit, LOTT Clean Water Alliance, Port of Olympia, WSDOT, school 
districts, and tribes.  Thurston Conservation District recently joined as a member.  Currently, the Chair of 
the Council is JW Foster, Mayor, City of Yelm.  Cynthia Pratt representing LOTT Clean Water Alliance 
serves as the Vice Chair.  Clark Gillman, Councilmember, City of Olympia, serves as the Secretary.  
TRPC’s mission is to provide leadership on regional plans, policies, and issues.  TRPC supports regional 
transportation planning consistent with state and federal regulations, addresses growth management, 
environmental quality, economic opportunities, and other topics determined by the Council.  TRPC 
assembles and analyzes data in support of local and regional decision-making.  TRPC serves as a 
convener to build regional consensus on issues through information and citizen involvement and builds 
intergovernmental consensus on regional plans, policies, issues, and advocates for local implementation.     
 
Products produced by TRPC include the Thurston County Bike Map, a series of Capitol Campus maps, 
development of the Climate Mitigation Plan, The Profile (compilation of various regional datasets), the 
Capitol Community Moving Forward Study requested by the Legislature on better ways to improve 
transportation and access on Capitol Campus, commute trip reduction efforts, and transportation demand 
management. 
 
TRPC’s former senior planner was assigned to work on the Capitol Lake issue over a 20-year period.  He 
retired from TRPC and has since volunteered to be part of the Capitol Lake study currently in progress.   
 
TRPC is involved in local food systems, transportation for children in schools, and What Moves You -  
TRPC’s Regional Transportation Plan.  The Transportation Policy Board is a subcommittee of the 
Council.  City of Lacey Mayor Andy Ryder serves as the Chair.  Graeme Sackrison serves as the Vice 
Chair.  Mr. Sackrison is a community representative and former mayor of the City of Lacey.  Kevin 
Dragon is a member of the TPB representing state agencies.   
 
TRPC is currently updating the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP).  The RTP serves as a roadmap 
forecasting the future of transportation in the next 25 years.  The region’s transportation system works 
across all jurisdictional boundaries.  The RTP not only addresses transportation, it addresses land use and 
economic development because of the interconnection.  The RTP considers maximizing the benefits of all 
transportation modes (transit, cycling, walking, & vehicles) within the region.   

DRAFT



CCDAC MEETING MINUTES- DRAFT 
February 20, 2020 

Page 10 of 15 
 
 
 
Elements in the RTP include: 
• A 20-year planning horizon 
• Consideration of transportation technology 
• Modeling of future travel demand 
• Identification of projects and strategies 
• Reflective of countywide planning policies 
• Plan is financially feasible 
• The RTP includes performance measures 
• The RTP promotes public involvement 
• The RTP preserves the environment 

 
TRPC is sponsoring a Community Survey.  The request is for all Thurston County residents to provide 
feedback for the next 25 years on the following: 
• Emerging transportation technologies - drones, autonomous vehicles 
• Understanding the importance of different types of transportation investments to promote safety, 

maintenance, and increasing capacity 
• Recognizing the important of transportation-related greenhouse gas reductions 
• Consideration in the types of high capacity transit options the region needs in the next 25 years 

 
Ms. Parkhurst encouraged members to complete the Community Survey, as well as encouraging family 
and friends to complete the survey.   
 
TRPC recently extended the deadline for the Community Survey.  The goal is to adopt the Regional 
Transportation Plan in July 2020.   
 
Ms. Parkhurst added that TRPC is also working with DES focusing on Capitol Campus and mobile work 
for state employees, climate issues, emergency and disaster recovery efforts, the U.S. Census, trail plans, 
and equity.  One current project with WSDOT is the I-5 Study from 93rd Avenue in Tumwater to Mounts 
Road. 
 
Mr. Wynands reported he serves as WSDOT’s representative on the Transportation Policy Board.  The 
Board and WSDOT have a good partnership with staff from both agencies working closely on 
transportation issues.  WSDOT is piloting a joint effort with TRPC on an update of the Highway System 
Plan with a goal for both plans to align.  Repairs to the local system that can improve the operation on the 
state system will benefit everyone.  It is important to pursue actions to repair the system at lower cost that 
benefits the highway system.  The pilot effort is proceeding well.  Current efforts are concentrating on the 
I-5 corridor along the Olympia/Lacey urban area for improving throughput and identifying measures that 
could be implemented in the short, medium, and long-term at low cost.  It is important to engage 
stakeholders in conversations as to how that work should proceed.   
 
Mr. Wynands shared information on the status of ramp metering in the Olympia area.  Southbound ramp 
metering is expected to become operational in Olympia by April.  WSDOT is entering into a 30-day 
phase of collecting data from the ramp meters.  Mr. Wynands distributed a fact sheet on the new 
southbound Interstate 5 ramp meters in Lacey and Olympia.  When ramp meters activated in Tacoma 
southbound ramps, an increase of 16% throughput was achieved within one week of activation.  Ramp 
meters receive traffic data and alter cycles to maximize highway traffic flow by releasing single vehicles 
to create a measured demand in entering the freeway system.  Ramp meters also meter traffic on the local 

DRAFT



CCDAC MEETING MINUTES- DRAFT 
February 20, 2020 

Page 11 of 15 
 
 
system, as well as the ramp.  The overall goal is to balance the needs of drivers merging onto the highway 
with the needs of drivers already there.  The ramps are connected to WSDOT’s traffic Management 
Center located in Tacoma.  The Traffic Management team monitors cameras and meters and can override 
meters manually when necessary.  When demand is not present, meters are not operational.  Only meters 
on southbound ramps will become operational at this time because of the level of current congestion.   
 
Project Manager Dragon added that the Olympic Region is planning to work with the DES team to 
communicate and outreach to state employees.  Mr. Wynands affirmed WSDOT has an extensive media 
campaign to educate the traveling public, as well as Capitol Campus employees and other larger 
businesses in the Lacey and Olympia areas.   
 
Mr. Daily asked whether the meters continually monitor the flow on the interstate and at the entrance of 
the ramp.  Mr. Wynands explained that ramp meters monitor the entire ramp up to the signalized 
intersection controlling the ramp.   
 
Senator Sheldon referred to information he received attesting to how a change in work schedules on 
campus, if staggered, could prevent much of the congestion along the I-5 corridor.  He asked whether that 
option was considered.  Ms. Parkhurst replied that the City of Olympia in coordination with TRPC 
applied for and received a Regional Mobility Grant to explore other low-cost solutions that could be 
quickly implemented in the short-term to address congestion because it likely funding required for any 
major improvements would take time.  The intent is to work with agencies and employees on Capitol 
Campus to explore telework and flexible work hour options.  TRPC, DES, and WSDOT have been 
working together on parking management in conjunction with City of Olympia on the local streets to 
identify normal traffic patterns based on existing work schedules.  That information will be compared 
with some traffic counts.  The effort entails some events, such as Telework Tuesdays to encourage 
employees to take advantage of telework on a particular day to enable tracking of impacts on the 
transportation system.  Flexible work hours will be encouraged on a different day.  The events will help 
move the needle on lower cost options that provide some benefits to employees, as well as to the campus.   
 
Project Manager Dragon noted that as congestion lessens, demand for space on the campus decreases 
resulting in other auxiliary benefits, such as reducing the demand for parking on the campus.   
 
Chair Rolluda cited the committee’s work on the Capital Campus Master Plan and several workshops 
focusing on transportation and parking from the I-5 corridor and how to move people to the campus.  
During those workshops, some good ideas were generated.  He suggested the team should review the 
results of the workshops to identify ideas that were generated. 
 
Director Liu pointed out how DES has implemented a telework policy and flexwork policy.  A good 
example of the impact for the entire campus is what occurs at the DES building on Fridays.  Each Friday, 
a measurable drop in cars and employees occurs.  Approximately 30 percent of the DES workforce is 
mobile-capable.  Each work team dictates when employees work at the building.  It is also important to 
ensure the agency has the right technology to support telework, such as the appropriate computers and 
internet accessibility.  Adoption of similar policies at each agency is important because the Executive 
Branch is not responsible for implementing policies, but rather it does require enlightened leaders in each 
agency to consider mobile work and flexible work policies seriously and whether teams can work in 
remote areas by using technology effectively.  Ongoing efforts include training employees on policies, 
ensuring correct procedures are in place, and ensuring employee are trained to use technology systems.  
He complimented WSDOT for improving the I-5 corridor through Tacoma by successfully managing the 
transition through the corridor.  Traffic flow has increased substantially.  He recommended WSDOT 

DRAFT



CCDAC MEETING MINUTES- DRAFT 
February 20, 2020 

Page 12 of 15 
 
 
consider installing wayfinding signage designating the left lane for through traffic.  During construction 
on I-5 near the Tacoma Dome, a sign was installed designating the left lane for through traffic, which 
helped reduce congestion considerably. 
 
Mr. Wynands said many conversations have occurred about adding express lanes because of the 
perception that the I-5 corridor through Joint Base Lewis McChord is congested because of the base.  
However, that is not the case.  WSDOT used blue tooth technology to document how over half the traffic 
on I-5 at Nisqually is still on I-5 in Tacoma.  Essentially, the congestion is not caused by a substantial 
influx from the base.  Those are some ideas under discussion to manage traffic flow.  All options are 
under consideration.  He agreed that signage designating the left lane for through traffic can be a simple 
and effective solution.     
 
Capital Projects Update – Information 
Chair Rolluda invited Assistant Director Frare and Project Manager Dragon to provide an update on 
capital projects. 
 
Assistant Director Frare reviewed several major campus projects: 
 
• Building Exterior Improvements – Capitol Court 

- The installation of scaffolding with black mesh will remain in place until the end of April 2020 
- Restoration of the building’s historic windows is in progress along with repairing and cleaning 

the stone exterior façade 
- Improvements are scheduled for completion in May/June 2020 

 
• Campus-wide Sidewalk Repair 

- The project entails sidewalk repairs and improvements to ADA access.  Sunken Garden was 
modified to include ADA access into and around the garden 

- Landscaping and irrigation improvements within the Sunken Garden will be completed by DES 
buildings and Grounds staff in spring 2020 

- Following completion of landscaping improvements, a rededication ceremony is planned in late 
spring/early summer of 2020 
 

• Insurance/Cherberg Roof Replacements 
- The Cherberg Building roof has been completed and meets current codes 
- The Insurance Building roof is nearing completion after experiencing some challenges in the 

delay of the project during wet winter months that created challenges for the contractor 
- The project is nearing completion 

 
• Legislative Building Exterior Preservation Cleaning (Legislative Dome) 

- The Legislative Building dome was cleaned in 2018 
- DES requested reallocation of remaining funds to repair roof, perform necessary stonework, and 

repair the exterior bronze doors and skylights 
- The design for the roof repair has been completed with the project bid to be released in late 

spring 2020 for completion during summer 2020.  Assistant Director Frare and Project Manager 
Dragon responded to questions about repairs to some roof leaks penetrating the interior of the 
building.  All roof repairs are scheduled to be completed in 2020.  Senator Sheldon noted that he 
has received many positive comments on the cleaning of the dome and building. 
 

DRAFT



CCDAC MEETING MINUTES- DRAFT 
February 20, 2020 

Page 13 of 15 
 
 
• Legislative Building Cleaning – Insurance Building 

- The Legislature introduced a program during the last session for $1.5 million for each biennium 
to rotate the cleaning of all sandstone buildings within the Legislative core to ensure the 
buildings stay clean and maintained over time.  The next building is the Insurance Building.  
DES has progressed on the design since the beginning of the biennium with construction 
occurring next summer.  Previously, the project was designated as Exterior Building Repair.  
This project has been revised since the last capital budget to reflect cleaning of historic buildings 
and some small minor works. 
 

• Arc-Flash Study  
- The study will assess safety of high-energy electrical panels within many campus buildings 
- Some high voltage panels lack important labels and procedures for shut-off and restarts that are 

necessary to protect employees.  The study will identify labeling needs, personal protective 
equipment for staff, and procedures and deficiencies in the electrical system requiring repair. 
 

• Conservatory Demolition 
- DES is completing plans to demolish the Conservatory 
- The Equipment Repair Technician is housed in the Conservatory and uses the space as a repair 

shop.  DES has not identified another location to relocate the function to maintain services.  
Prior to moving forward with the demolition of the Conservatory, a new location for the function 
needs to be identified. 

- DES has limited funding.  DES is forwarding the plan and estimates required to advance the 
permitting and initiate demolition of the Conservatory.  If funding allows, the entire building 
will be removed.  The building is experiencing some foundation issues as well as some slope 
stability issues prior to moving forward with the demolition project.  Chair Rolluda asked about 
the plans for the site after the building has been demolished.  Project Manager Dragon advised 
that staff will develop a strategy for the long-term use of the site at a later date.  Assistant 
Director Frare added that demolition and removal of the building is required because of the 
underlying unstable slope.  Land under the building is moving and any event with a substantial 
amount of rain contributes to the creation of a slip plain within the slope that creates stresses on 
the roadway, facilities, and existing utilities.  The Conservatory is experiencing buckling and is a 
safety concern.  Existing utility infrastructure needs to be realigned for protection and 
preservation followed by stabilization of the slope.    
 

• Insurance Commissioner Office Building Predesign 
- The predesign is currently completing the alternatives analysis phase.  A report is due to the 

Legislature in several weeks.  Following the release of the report, a selection of the preferred 
alternative will follow to complete a detailed analysis of the preferred alternative. 

- The Insurance Commission has partnered with the Department of Children Youth and Families 
to co-locate to the new facility.  The programmatic needs of both organizations are under 
consideration as the preferred alternative analysis is completed.  Project Manager Dragon noted 
that at the last meeting, the committee was briefed on the plan and staff was hopeful progress 
would have been achieved to present more information to the committee.  However, staff 
continues to work on the alternatives analysis.  
 

• Newhouse Predesign 
- An alternatives analysis was completed in December 2019.  Staff continues to work with the 

House and Senate Administration on which alternative to move forward.  Clear direction was not 

DRAFT



CCDAC MEETING MINUTES- DRAFT 
February 20, 2020 

Page 14 of 15 
 
 

provided to DES during the last legislative session.  The Senate Capital Budget includes 
selection of an alternative within the plan.  The House is anticipated to respond in the next 
several days.  DES plans to move forward after receiving direction from the Legislature. 

- In the interim, DES is identifying the consequences of taking no action.  Staff cautions that a 
building not occupied at full capacity for nine months creates stress on building systems as all 
systems are beyond their respective life span resulting in systems not functioning properly when 
occupied.  The building has reached the point where it is a critical need.  DES also developed a 
scenario if the building was renovated.  Essentially, extending the life of an old and outdated 
building and bringing the building to current standards would incur significant costs and exceed 
the cost of demolishing and replacing the building.  It is important decision-makers understand 
the consequences of between the options of no action, renovating, or the three alternatives.    
 

• Capitol Child Care Center 
- DES received an appropriation of $10 million to construct a child care facility for 75 students at 

the corner of the East Campus at Capitol Way and Maple Park. 
- DES selected the Progressive Design-Build delivery method.  Within the Progressive Design-

Build process, a guaranteed maximum price is negotiated with the design-builder to develop the 
scope of the building.  DES is currently negotiating the guaranteed maximum prices.  Some 
difficult decisions will be necessary concerning the scope of the project to stay within the 
budget.  The project is scheduled for substantial completion in 2020 with the center opening in 
July 2021 to afford sufficient time to secure licensing and hire an operator for the facility.   
 

• Next Century Campus Study 
- The current power plant is 100 years old and serves the campus through a steam distribution 

system with three boilers located at the bottom of the hill on the rear side of the Legislative 
Building.  Steam is circulated around the campus to provide heat to a majority of campus 
buildings.  Operation of the boilers is required year-round because steam pipes could contract 
creating other problems.  The steam plant is only 33% efficient resulting in the loss of 67% of 
the heating capacity from the boilers fueled by natural gas. 

- The power plant is a reliability problem, a greenhouse gas issue, an efficiency issue, and is 
located in an area of unstable slopes. 

- DES completed an investment grade audit through the agency’s Energy Savings Program to 
develop a plan for an upgraded system at a cost of approximately $125 million.  Following 
presentations to decision-makers on a recommendation to move forward, staff was asked to 
complete a predesign on the project.  Although an investment grade audit and a predesign have 
many of the same attributes, they are not the same.  DES subsequently completed the predesign.  
In the interim, a number of policy initiatives were adopted by the Governor and the Legislature 
on net zero, reducing greenhouse gases, and increasing efficiencies.  The next step incorporated 
those policies within the predesign documents to enable legislators and other decision-makers to 
evaluate how the proposal creates an effective system and achieves policies and goals over the 
next 30 years.   

- DES has completed an agency review of the predesign and forwarded comments to the 
consultant to update and finalize the predesign by May 2020.      
     

Update on 2021-23 Capital Planning Process - Informational 
Chair Rolluda invited staff to provide an update on the 2021-23 capital planning process. 
 

DRAFT



CCDAC MEETING MINUTES- DRAFT 
February 20, 2020 

Page 15 of 15 
 
 
Project Manager Dragon reported the draft capital budget for the agency is due in September to OFM.  
The planning team is reviewing the current 10-year plan of projects and costs.  A draft 10-year plan was 
developed, which is undergoing an internal review.  Plan projects will be scored and prioritized.  The 
team will solicit feedback from other divisions about projected needs that should be included in the 
capital plan by category as a major project (preservation & programmatic) or a minor works project (less 
than $1 million and greater than $25,000).  Staff will present the plan to the committee at a future 
meeting.  Another review will reconcile the plan with the budget after the House, Senate, and Governor 
approve the capital budget.  The final plan will be presented to the committee. 
 
Public Comments – Informational 
Steve Shanewise addressed the hybrid alternative for the Capitol Lake EIS.  Currently, a brackish lagoon 
is proposed rather than a freshwater lake.  That choice was selected during the major evaluation process 
(MEP) of the EIS.  It was the wrong choice.  He spoke with the EIS team about the reasons a freshwater 
lake option was dropped during the MEP and he has proven that the reasons are invalid.  He provided the 
committee with the proof summarized in a two-page document.  The EIS for Capitol Lake should be 
completed regardless of cost.  If not completed this time, it might never happen.  He asked that the EIS 
be fair and science-based and not fixed with predetermined outcomes.  No one wants the hybrid 
alternative with a brackish and stagnant lagoon as thousands of people do want a clean freshwater lake.  
The review that rejected the freshwater lake option and the hybrid alternative should be revisited in light 
of the new information he has provided.   
 
Next Meeting – Informational 
The next meeting of the State Capitol Committee (SCC) is on Thursday, March 19, 2020 at 10 a.m. at 
the Senate Rules Room in the Legislative Building.  The next CCDAC meeting is scheduled on 
Thursday, May 7, 2020 at DES at 1500 Jefferson Street.  For more information, visit the SCC and 
CCDAC website for meeting dates, minutes, and meeting agendas.   
  
Adjournment - Action 
With there being no further business, Chair Rolluda adjourned the meeting at 11:51 a.m.  
 
 
 
Prepared by Valerie L. Gow, Recording Secretary/President 
Puget Sound Meeting Services, psmsoly@earthlink.net 

 DRAFT

mailto:psmsoly@earthlink.net


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 



 
 
 

Washington State Department of Enterprise Services Page 1 of 1 
 

Capitol Campus Advisory Committee 
September 17, 2020 
 
 
3- State Capital Committee Actions 
 
Purpose:   Informational 
 
Sponsor(s):  Bill Frare, DES FPS Assistant Director 
Department(s): Enterprise Services  
Contact:  360-280-6083, bill.frare@des.wa.gov 
 
Presenters:  Bill Frare, DES FPS Assistant Director 
 
Description: 
The State Capitol Committee (SCC) held a special meeting on August 10, 2020. The purpose of 
the meeting was to review statutes pertaining to the SCC. At this meeting the SCC adopted 
Policies and Procedures, and authorized DES to convene a workgroup to review RCW and 
WAC and make recommendations for revisions.  
 
Next Steps: 
DES is developing a project charter, vetting with stakeholders and will present to SCC for 
approval in the October SCC meeting. 
 
Requested Action: 
This is an informational item. No action by CCDAC is necessary. 
 
List of Attachments: 
Attachment 3A: Policies and Procedures for State Capitol Committee (as approved by SCC on 
08/10/2020). 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 



POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR 

STATE CAPITOL COMMITTEE (SCC) 

 
1. Membership. Per RCW 43.34.010, the SCC’s membership shall include the governor 

or the governor's designee, the lieutenant governor, the secretary of state, and the commissioner of 
public lands. The secretary of state may delegate responsibility to the deputy or assistant secretary 
of state. The commissioner of public lands may delegate responsibility to the deputy commissioner 
of public lands. 

 
2. Committee Records. Per RCW 43.34.015, the commissioner of public lands shall be 

the secretary of the SCC. The SCC may appoint a suitable person as acting secretary. However, 
all records of the SCC shall be filed in the office of the commissioner of public lands. 

 

3. Officers. Members of the SCC will nominate and elect a Chair and Vice-Chair from 
among its members at the last meeting of the calendar year to serve a term of one year beginning 
the January 1st following the officer election.  

 
4. Meetings. In accordance with the Washington Open Public Meetings Act (RCW 

42.30), at the last meeting of each calendar year, the SCC shall adopt a regular meeting schedule 
for the following year. Meeting dates may be changed or canceled with pre-approval of the Chair 
and consent of committee members pursuant to RCW 42.30. Special meetings and work sessions 
may be called at any time throughout the year by the SCC Chair based. Notices and agendas for 
all meetings, regular and special, must be published in accordance with RCW the Open Public 
Meetings Act. 

 Executive Session may be called by the SCC Chair during a regular or special meeting. 
These sessions exclude the public from the meeting place and are subject to specific provisions 
outlined by RCW 42.30.110. 

 The SCC Chair has full discretion on whether public comments will be entertained on 
items intended primarily for committee discussion and action. 

5.  Annual Requirements.  
a. The SCC will have a joint meeting with CCDAC annually for CCDAC to provide 

SCC with a briefing and for the two committees to exchange information and topics 
of interest for the following year.  

b. The SCC will receive an annual informational briefing from the Office of Financial 
Management’s Facilities Oversight Program on the Six-Year Facilities Plan, any 
anticipated needs of state agencies with offices in the SCC’s jurisdiction, and any 
other relevant information. 

c. The SCC will receive an annual report for the committee’s consideration and 
adoption from the Director of DES on the agency’s policy direction regarding 



stewardship, preservation, operation, and maintenance of the public and historic 
facilities of the state capitol. 

d. The SCC will receive an annual review of the state’s available and potential project 
sites and the SCC’s Capital Grounds Master Plan, and will adopt any revisions or 
additions to the Plan deemed necessary by the Committee. 

 
6. Powers and Duties of Committee. The SCC shall: 

a. Provide for the construction, remodeling, and furnishing of capitol office buildings, 
parking facilities, the Governor's Mansion, and such other buildings and facilities 
as are determined by the SCC to be necessary to provide space for the legislature 
by way of offices, committee rooms, hearing rooms, and work rooms, and to 
provide executive office space and housing for the governor, and to provide 
executive office space for other elective officials and such other state agencies as 
may be necessary, and to pay for all costs and expenses in issuing the bonds and to 
pay interest thereon during construction of the facilities for which the bonds were 
issued and six months thereafter, in accordance with RCW 79.24.650. 

b. Approve or reject any and all acquisitions of real estate in Thurston County, in 
accordance with RCW 43.82.020. 

c. Approve or reject any construction of state buildings in Thurston not located on the 
state capitol grounds, in accordance with RCW 79.24.550. 

d. Acquire property by gift, exchange, purchase, option to purchase, condemnation or 
other means of acquisition not expressly prohibited by law, and in accordance with 
RCW 79.24.520. 

e. Approve or reject any plan for the design and establishment of state capitol 
buildings and grounds on the east capitol site, in accordance with RCW 79.24.530. 

f. Approve or reject requirements for the construction of buildings on the east capitol 
site, in accordance with RCW 79.24.540. 

g. Construct buildings on the “Sylvester site” or “Capitol place” in Olympia, in 
accordance with RCW 43.34.040. 

h. Make recommendations to the Legislature regarding the names of new and existing 
buildings, as well as new and existing rooms and spaces within buildings, on the 
State Capitol Grounds, in accordance with RCW 43.34.090. 

i. Construct parking facilities on state capitol grounds, in accordance with RCW 
79.24.300. 

j. Determine the policy direction of the Department of Enterprise Services regarding 
the stewardship, preservation, operation, and maintenance of the public and historic 
facilities of the state capitol, in accordance with RCW 79.24.720. 

k. Grant final approval for all development plans for state capitol grounds including 
the master plan, and for the design and siting of major works to be located on state 
capitol grounds, in accordance with WAC 200-230-020(2). 

 



7. Statement of Policy. The State Capitol Committee that all matters presented to it for 
decision will be presented  at a time when rejection of a proposal or a request for alternatives to 
a proposal will not unduly delay the completion of a project or make it necessary to schedule a 
special meeting of the Committee. If the legislature appropriates funds or directs DES to execute 
a project or task that requires approval from the Committee, the SCC anticipates and expects that 
all items will be presented to the committee in advance of the expenditure of any funds for said 
project or task. 

 
8. Meeting Agenda. The Committee expects that the DES, as staff for the Committee, 

shall prepare an agenda for all regular meetings, including both items requested by Committee 
members and by DES. The agenda must be submitted to the Chair for approval at least ten 
workings days before a regular meeting. Once approved, staff shall distribute that agenda and 
meeting materials to all committee members at least five working days before a regular meeting. 
Agendas shall consist of informational items and decisional items.  

a. Informational Items: Informational items shall consist of information regarding 
any item for which Committee approval is eventually required. DES shall present 
informational items at such times as to facilitate Committee understanding of, and 
input into, all items for which Committee approval is eventually required. 

b. Decisional Items. All items for which Committee approval is required must be 
presented as described in part (9). 

 
9. Requests for Committee Approval. All agenda items that require the approval of the 

SCC as described in Section 6, above, must include, at a minimum, a recommendation by DES 
and not fewer than one alternative for the SCC’s consideration. Each item must include a 
statement of the advantages and disadvantages of each potential course of action and the reasons 
why the recommended decision is preferred. The SCC may, in its discretion, approve the 
recommended decision or any alternative, or direct DES to return to a future meeting with 
additional information or alternatives. If the SCC does not approve DES’s recommendation, it 
may schedule the matter for further consideration at a future meeting. DES may not move forward 
with a project or task that requires Committee approval without the required approval. 

a. Agenda items related to capital projects and/or property acquisition. DES shall 
present as informational items all capital projects and/or acquisitions of property 
for which DES anticipates seeking budgetary authority from the Legislature, and 
that fall within the powers and duties of the SCC.  

b. Requests for Committee approval of final action. All other requests for SCC 
approval must be included in an SCC agenda as decisional items so that SCC 
consideration may take place in a timely way that will avoid delaying projects. Final 
approval is required: 

i. At the last stage or phase of any project or item under which the State would 
be committed to expend public funds, or proposals for the acquisition or 
improvement of any real property, except as described in (iii), below; 



ii. At the last step before making a recommendation to the Legislature 
regarding the naming of any building, room, or space within a building; and 

iii. At adoption of development plans for state capitol grounds including the 
master plan, and for the design and siting of major works to be located on 
state capitol grounds.  

c. Informational Items. Agenda items within the SCC’s scope and powers require 
approval at different points in a project’s timeline based on the project. In order to 
provide consistency, DES will provide informational briefings to the Committee on 
project phases occurring prior to the Committee’s approval. The first briefing of a 
project must include a project timeline that highlights the various project phases, at 
what points the project will require SCC approval, and a timeline of additional 
approvals needed from other state agencies and organizations. 

 
d. Signature Sheets. The committee shall operate under Reeds Rules of Order. DES 

staff shall provide signature sheets for SCC members to indicate approval or 
rejection of all items submitted pursuant to Section 9 above. Signature sheets will 
be included in the SCC’s meeting records. 

 
  



 
 
 

Washington State Department of Enterprise Services Page 1 of 2 
 

Capitol Campus Advisory Committee 
September 17, 2020 
 
 
4- Insurance Commissioner Office Building- Predesign  
Purpose:   Action 
 
Sponsor(s): Bill Frare, DES FPS Assistant Director, Kevin Dragon, Program Manager 

and Majid Jamali, Project Manager 
Department(s): Department of Enterprise Services 
Contact:  360-407-8239, kevin.dragon@des.wa.gov 
 
Presenters:  Majid Jamali, Project Manager 

Bill Frare, DES FPS Assistant Director 
 
Description: 
The 2019-21 Capital Budget includes funding for a predesign for an Insurance Commissioner 
Office Building (see SHB 1102, Section 1092), and amended by 2020 Supplemental Budget 
ESSB 6248 Section 1028 including Department of Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) which 
requires consideration of the following: 

• Programmatic space requirements for both Office of the Insurance Commissioner(OIC) 
and DCYF, including the current space usage by facility; and proposed space use for a 
new facility. 

• Parking impacts of new office space construction. 
• A high-performance, net-zero building having an EUI of 35 (or less). 
• Use of cross-laminated timber products. 

 
Following opportunity sites were considered for this predesign: 

• Site 1 (General Administration Building), 
• Site 6B (Visitor Center), 
• Site 12 (Pro Arts Building). 

 
Site 1 (GA) selected as preferred site due to size of the new building and following been 
studied: 

• Demolition of the GA building 
• Space need of 209,000 SF 
• Heavy timber structure frame, CLT floors with Concrete shear wall 
• Building with two wings connected by central core and courtyard between two wings 

o 4 stories south wing and 6 stories north wing 
• High performance Envelope 
• EUI of 18 
• Facility security level III standards (FSL III) 
• Meet LEED Silver standards 
• General contractor/construction manager GC/CM as the appropriate delivery method 

 
A parking study has been performed to meet the requirement of proviso for parking impacts of 
612-714 additional parking on several potential sites and opportunity Site 12 (Pro Arts site) was 



Washington State Department of Enterprise Services Page 2 of 2 

recommended by DES for further study and consideration for parking structure to accommodate 
the parking needs. 
 
Final predesign draft submitted to OFM and Fiscal Committee of the legislatures end of August 
to meet the requirement of capital budget provision.  
 
Next Steps: 

• Findings of the predesign will be presented to State Capital Committee (SCC) for their 
concurrence 

• Upon approval of the predesign and once funding become available, DES will begin 
selection of design team and GC/CM as follow 

• Project assumes design one biennium and construction on following biennium 
 
Requested Action: 
 

Move to recommend approval by the State Capitol Committee of the preferred 
development option, and related findings and recommendations, as outlined in the 
predesign study for Insurance Commissioner Office Building, as prepared by Mithun 
dated September 1, 2020. 
 

 
List of Attachments: 
Attachment 4A: Insurance Commissioner Office Building- Predesign Presentation. 



Office of the Insurance Commissioner &
Department of Children, Youth and Families 

OIC DCYF INTERIORS PLANNING WORKSHOP  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  JUNE 12, 2020

AGENDA

 — PHASE 1: Alternatives Analysis

 — PHASE 2: Preferred Alternative

OIC DCYF CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020



ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS-

OIC DCYF CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

OIC DCYF CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS - SITE CAPACITY

SITE DEVELOPMENT CAPACITY OIC + DCYF FITS SITE
Opportunity Site 1, General Administration Building 274,750 GSF 209,000 GSF YES

Opportunity Site 6, Visitor Center 132,500 GSF 209,000 GSF NO

Opportunity Site 12, Pro Arts Building 148,000 GSF 209,000 GSF NO



PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE-

OIC DCYF CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

OPPORTUNITY SITE 1 -GENERAL ADMINISTRATION BUILDING

 — Demolition of GA building

 — Adjacent to a steep slope requires repair to retaining wall

 — Setbacks for construction due to bad soils and steep slope

 — Views of Capitol Lake 

OIC DCYF CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020



SITE CONTEXT

HELEN SOMMERS BUILDING

SUPREME COURT

CONSERVATORY

OIC/DCYF BUILDING

WWII

MEMORIAL

N DIAGONAL

APARTMENT 

PARKING 

GARAGE 

HERITAGE PARK TRAIL

CAPITOL LAKE

OIC DCYF CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

SITE PLAN

 —Secure vehicle access

 —Informal outdoor seating

 —Protect Significant Tree and existing understory vegetation

 —Secured view courtyard

 —South side creates formal edge to Great Lawn

 —Building footprint aligns with Helen Sommers Building

 —87 on site parking spaces

VISITOR 
PARKING

1

1

2 3

4

4

5

6

7

8

9 9

9

9

1010

10

10

10

11

12

12

12

1414

15 15

16

16

13

13

LEGEND                                                     
             Standard Gray Concrete

             Concrete with integral color

             Specialty Paving - permeable pavers

             Stone/Concrete slabs/walls to serve     
             as seating elements and protective                 
             barriers

11th Ave SW

C
olum

bia Street SW

OIC DCYF CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020



DESIGN

 — Main entrance on 11th Ave SW facing campus with secured public entry

 — Secondary Employee Entrance from north parking lot

 — Two parallel bars optimally oriented for solar access maximizing day lighting and minimizing heat gain 

 — Building orientation optimizes roof for solar panels 

 — Central circulation and utility core connects the bars

HELEN SOMMERS BUILDING

OIC/DCYF BUILDING

11TH AVE SW

OIC DCYF CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

LEVEL 04

TO ROOF

13' - 6"

LEVEL 03

68' - 6"

13' - 6"
LEVEL 02

55' - 0"

70' - 6"

41' - 6"

28' - 0"

LEVEL 06

LEVEL 05

0' - 0"

55' - 0"
LEVEL 04

LEVEL 02

LEVEL 03

84' - 0"

LEVEL 01

LEVEL 05

TO ROOF

41' - 6"

28' - 0"

87
'-0

"

60
'-0

"

DC G HB EA F

BUILDING SECTION

 — Four story massing on south relates to Helen Sommers and campus masterplan

 — Six story massing on south relates to Downtown Olympia  scale and steps down the hill

 — Central courtyard enhances daylight and provides view

CHERBERG BUILDING DATUM 
93’-3”

OIC DCYF CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020



PROGRAM

 — 209,000 Gross Square Feet

 — 127,500 Net Square Feet

 — OIC has 1.5 floors - 29,484 NSF

 — DCYF has 3.5 floors -  103,831 NSF

 — Shared programs - 39,438 NSF

 — 61% Building efficiency

 — 27% space savings from current space use

 — Additional 179 FTE accomodated allowing for future growth

MAIN ENTRANCE

FOUR STORIES

SIX STORIES

DCYF

DCYF

DCYF

DCYF

DCYF

DCYF

OIC / DCYF

OIC
OIC 

DCYF

01

02

03

04

05

02

03

04

05

06

OIC DCYF CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

FLOOR PLANS

LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3

OIC DCYF CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

BIKE

SHWMECH. 
/ ELEC.LOAD

NORTH ENTRANCE

COURTYARD

LOBBY /
RECEPTION

M
R

KT

FL
EX

 / 
TR

AI
N

IN
G

MAIN ENTRANCE

FLEX
COLAB

'FRONT PORCH'

SECURITY

FLOOR 
LOBBY

RO RO RY RY

FLEX

FLOOR 
LOBBY

FLOOR 
LOBBY

COLAB

FLEX
COLAB

WORKSTATIONS
OFFICE STD
OFFICE LRG
CONF STAND
CONF LARGE
HUDDLE
PHONE
PRINTING
STORAGE
LOCKERS
BREAKRM

DCYF

WORKSTATIONS
OFFICE STD
OFFICE LRG
CONF STAND
CONF LARGE
HUDDLE
PHONE
PRINTING
STORAGE
LOCKERS
BREAKRM

DCYF

WORKSTATIONS
OFFICE STD
OFFICE LRG
CONF STAND
CONF LARGE
HUDDLE
PHONE
PRINTING
STORAGE
LOCKERS
BREAKRM

DCYF



FLOOR PLANS

LEVEL 4 LEVEL 5 LEVEL 6

OIC

FLEX
COLAB

FLOOR 
LOBBY

FLOOR 
LOBBY

WORKSTATIONS
OFFICE STD
OFFICE LRG
CONF STAND
CONF LARGE
HUDDLE
PHONE
PRINTING
STORAGE
LOCKERS
BREAKRM

OIC/DCYF

FLEX
COLAB

FLOOR 
LOBBY

FLOOR 
LOBBY

WORKSTAITONS
OFFICE STD
OFFICE LRG
CONF STAND
CONF LARGE
HUDDLE
PHONE
PRINTING
STORAGE
LOCKERS
BREAKRM

OIC

FLOOR 
LOBBY

SCREENED 
MECH

MACHINEMECH

PVPV

WORKSTATIONS
OFFICE STD
OFFICE LRG
CONF STAND
CONF LARGE
HUDDLE
PHONE
PRINTING
STORAGE
LOCKERS
BREAKRM

DCYF

OIC DCYF CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

CROSS LAMINATED TIMBER

 — Showcase the possibilities for Cross Laminated Timber (CLT) construction

 — Leverage the regions heavy timber industry and innovation around CLT in Washington

 — Foster growth in the CLT industry

 — Demonstrate the potential for the use of CLT and heavy timber in office buildings

 — Create smaller carbon footprint and support LEED goals

OIC DCYF CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020



OIC DCYF CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

NET-ZERO READY AND EUI < 35 

 — Net-zero energy ready facility

 — EUI < 35

 — Roof mounted photovoltaic panels will reduce EUI by approximately 9

 — Infrastructure to add additional panels in the future

EUI~35

kW~767                   

Use rooftops of other buildings on campus

Highways and Licensing Building = 15,275 sf

Natural Resource Building = 22,000 sf

Office Building 2 = 24,000 sf

Department Of Transportation = 26,000 sf

+ 1,916 kW offsite                  



 
 
 

Washington State Department of Enterprise Services Page 1 of 2 
 

Capitol Campus Advisory Committee 
September 17, 2020 
 
 
5- Legislative Campus Modernization- Predesign  
Purpose:   Informational 
 
Sponsor(s): Bill Frare, DES FPS Assistant Director,  

Kevin Dragon, Program Manager, and 
Majid Jamali, Project Manager 

Department(s): Department of Enterprise Services 
Contact:  360-407-8239, kevin.dragon@des.wa.gov 
 
Presenters:  Majid Jamali, Project Manager 

Bill Frare, DES FPS Assistant Director 
 
Description: 
The 2020 Supplemental Capital Budget ESSB 6248 Section 1027 amends the 2018 
Supplemental Capital Budget (ESSB 6095 Section 1035) and authorizes a predesign to 
consider: 
 

• Replacement of Newhouse building on opportunity site 6 
• Programmatic space requirements for Senate offices and support functions 
• Building façade similar to American Neoclassical style 
 
• Replacement or renovation of Pritchard building 
• Programmatic space requirements for House of Representatives offices and support 

functions 
• Renovation of third and fourth floor of O’Brien 
 
• Consider additional floor to Newhouse 
• Consider additional space to Pritchard 
• Space need for Legislative support agencies 
• Detail on temporary facility 
• A high-performance, net-zero building having an EUI of 35 (or less) 
• No negative parking impacts 
• Performance based construction method 
• Preferred sequence of construction as Newhouse, Pritchard and then O’Brien 3rd and 4th 

floor renovation 
• Analysis of single contract vs multiple projects 

 
 
In order to strictly meet requirements of the capital budget provision, the predesign will include 
potential development scenarios to meet the needs of Senate, House of representatives and 
Legislative support agencies. 
 
To date, the following has been accomplished: 

• Mithun continued work on alternatives as outlined in proviso 



Washington State Department of Enterprise Services Page 2 of 2 

• Programming meetings has been held and are still underway 
• Geotechnical, Topographic site survey and Phase 1 environmental site assessment has 

been done 
• Meetings have been held with City of Olympia for development requirements. 

 
Next Steps: 

• Programming meeting continues to identify preferred alternative 
• Project status presentation will be provided at next State Capitol Committee meeting 
 

Requested Action: 
 

No Action is required at this time. 
 
List of Attachments: 
Attachment 5A: Legislative Campus Modernization- Predesign Presentation. 



Legislative Campus Modernization 
Predesign Study

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

AGENDA

 — PHASE 1: Alternatives Analysis

 — PHASE 2: Preferred Alternative

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020



ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS-

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

PHASE 1 ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS 

Option A Separate Senate and House Offices

Option B Collocated Senate and House Offices

Option C Senate Offices Only

Option D House Offices Only

House

Senate

Leg.
Agencies

15th Avenue SW

16th Avenue SW

W
at

er
 S

tr
ee

t

Co
lu

m
bi

a 
St

re
et

Ca
pt

io
l W

ay
 S

Sid Syder Avenue SW

JLOB JAC

LEG

SenateHouse Leg. 
Agencies

Surface
Parking
(Option B.1)

15th Avenue SW

16th Avenue SW

W
at

er
 S

tr
ee

t

Co
lu

m
bi

a 
St

re
et

Ca
pt

io
l W

ay
 S

Sid Syder Avenue SW

JLOB JAC

LEG

Senate

15th Avenue SW

16th Avenue SW

W
at

er
 S

tr
ee

t

Co
lu

m
bi

a 
St

re
et

Ca
pt

io
l W

ay
 S

Sid Syder Avenue SW

JLOB JAC

LEG

Se
na

te

15th Avenue SW

16th Avenue SW

W
at

er
 S

tr
ee

t

Co
lu

m
bi

a 
St

re
et

Ca
pt

io
l W

ay
 S

Sid Syder Avenue SW

JLOB JAC

LEG

OPTION A OPTION B OPTION C OPTION D



PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE ANALYSIS-

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE - SEPARATE SENATE AND HOUSE OFFICES

House

Senate

Leg.
Agencies

15th Avenue SW

16th Avenue SW

W
at

er
 S

tr
ee

t

Co
lu

m
bi

a 
St

re
et

Ca
pt

io
l W

ay
 S

Sid Syder Avenue SW

JLOB JAC

LEG

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020



PARKING STALL COUNT 
(IN PROXIMITY TO PROJECT)

Visitor Center Lot 82       
Press House Lots  48
Newhouse Circle 16
Water St SW 43
South of Cherberg 34
South of O’Brien 24
Pritchard Lot 93
South of Pritchard  10

Total  350

Note: not all of these parking stalls 
will be affected by the develop-
ment of this project. All stalls noted 
here are for reference only. 

16th Ave SW

15th Ave SW

Sid Snyder Ave SW

S Diagonal

Ca
pi

to
l W

ay
 S

Ch
er

ry
 L

n 
SW

Co
lu

m
bi

a 
St

 S
W

W
at

er
  S

t S
W

Sy
lv

es
te

r  
St

 S
W

(82)CHERBERG

VISITOR CENTER
PRESS HOUSES

O’BRIEN

GOV.

LEGISLATIVE BUILDING

PRITCHARD

N
EW

H
O

U
SE

IN
SU

RA
N

CE
 B

LD
G

(22)

(4)

(22)
(16)

(34)

(93)

(43)

(10)

(24)

(35 stalls)

EXISTING SITE PLAN

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

SITE ISSUES

 — EXISTING PRITCHARD BUILDING LOCATED WITHIN 100’ STEEP SLOPE SETBACK

 — OPTION TO REPLACE PRITCHARD BUILDING TO BUILD OUTSIDE THE 100’ STEEP SLOPE SETBACK IS CONSIDERED

 — PRITCHARD AND NEWHOUSE BUILDINGS ON LIQUIFACTION SOILS

 — SITE PLANNING OPTIONS FALL SHORT OF MAINTAINING PARKING COUNT 

 — PARKING SHORTFALL RANGES FROM (47-14) FOR ALL OPTIONS

 — TO ADDRESS SHORTFALL PARKING DECK ON VISITOR SITE IS UNDER CONSIDERATION

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020



SITE ISSUES

 — SIGNIFICANT TREES ON NEWHOUSE AND VISITOR CENTER SITES IMPACT PARKING COUNTS

 — VACATION OF COLUMBIA STREET BETWEEN 15TH AVE SW AND SID SNYDER WAY SW IS PROPOSED

 — VACATION OF COLUMBIA STREET IMPLEMENTS MASTERPLAN GOAL

 — PROPOSAL TO CLOSE WATER STREET SW BETWEEN 15TH AVE SW AND SID SNYDER WAY SW SECURES SITE

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

PHASE 2 - PROGRAM UNDER CONSIDERATION

BUILDING PROGRAM PHASE 1 
(NET)

PHASE 2 
(NET)

DELTA

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 26,860 28,745 1,885
House 17,065 18,950

House Office & Conference 12,645 14,610
House Shared Spaces 1,600 1,400
House Public Spaces (Hearing Room, Caucus, Security) 2,820 2,940

O’Brien Remodel 9,795 9,795

SENATE OFFICES 14,424 25,345 10,921
Senate

Senate Space 9,560 13,685
Caucus Space 3,194 7,070
Shared Space 1,670 4,590

LEGISLATIVE AGENCIES 16,385 23,148 6,763
Code Reviser 6,946 8,630
Leg Tech (LSC) 5,605 6,595
LSS Photo & Video 3,834 900
LSS in Admin 0 1,588
Production and Design 0 5,435

OTHER 3,930 4,635 705
Page School (Shared Senate & House) 1,100 1,660

Public Space (Cafeteria & Kitchen) 2,830 2,830
Third House Message Center 0 145

PRESS   
Accommodated in Rms 101, 102, 103 in Leg Building Press House 1 (Blue/CARLYON) 0 0

Press House 2 (White/AYER) 0 0

TOTAL 61,599 81,873 20,274

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020



PREFERRED ALTERNATIVES 

OPTION A.1  

OPTION A.2 

OPTION B.1  

OPTION B.2  

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

OPTION A.1 - SITE PLAN
BUIDLING AREA:

NEWHOUSE  =  42,000 gsf
PRITCHARD  =  63,500 gsf

PARKING STALL COUNT
(PHASE 1 DEVELOPMENT AREA)

existing to be demolished
Visitor Center Lot [82]
Newhouse Circle  [16] 
Press Houses  [48]
Water Street [11]
Pritchard Lot    [93]
Behind Cherberg [6]
Subtotal    [256]

new stalls added   
Visitor CenteBlock* 176 - 207
Pritchard Lot 35
Subtotal    211 - 242

Total shortfall [14 - 45]

*Parking stall range depends on the 
preservation of significant trees or 
not.

Approx. 60 additional stalls could 
be accomodated on the south side 
of the visitor center lot with the 
construction of a one story parking 
deck. 

THREE 
STORIES

THREE STORIES

16th Ave SW

15th Ave SW

Sid Snyder Ave SW

S Diagonal

Ca
pi

to
l W

ay
 S

Ch
er

ry
 L

n 
SW

Co
lu

m
bi

a 
St

 S
W

W
at

er
  S

t S
W

Sy
lv

es
te

r  
St

 S
W

fire lane
(176 - 207 stalls)*

(35 stalls)(35 stalls)

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020



OPTION A.1 - PROGRAMMING 

RAMP UP

RAMP UP

UP

PLANTER U
P

UP

U
P

U
P

CODE REVISER
LEG. TECH
OFFICES

LEG. TECH EQUIP, 
STAGE, STRG.

ELEC / MECH

HEARING
ROOM

C.R. FILE
STORG

LOBBY

LOADING

(~40 STALLS)

ENTRY

PRIMARY 
ENTRY

N

SENATE SPACE LOBBY 

PAGE
SCHL

CAFE

LT
TRAIN

PHTO

PRITCHARD

GROUND FLOOR* 
(14,825 nsf / 21,700 gsf)

 BASEMENT
(6,850 nsf / 14,800 gsf)

FLOOR 02
(8,095 nsf / 13,500 gsf)

FLOOR 03
(7,915 nsf / 13,500 gsf)HOUSE OFFICE

HOUSE OFFICE

HOUSE OFFICE

HOUSE OFFICE

SENATE OFFICE

SENATE OFFICE

SENATE SPACE 

SENATE OFFICE

SENATE OFFICE

SENATE SPACE 

ELEC / 
MECHNEWHOUSE

GROUND FLOOR*
(8,005 nsf / 14,000 gsf)

FLOOR 02
(9,965 nsf/ 14,000 gsf)

FLOOR 03
(9,635 nsf/ 14,000 gsf)

SECURITY

*NEW PRESS OFFICES CAN ONLY FIT 
IN THIS SCHEME IF BUILDING AREA 
IS EXPANDED.

N

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

OPTION A.2 - SITE PLAN

FOUR 
STORIES

THREE STORIES

16th Ave SW

15th Ave SW

Sid Snyder Ave SW

S Diagonal

Ca
pi

to
l W

ay
 S

Ch
er

ry
 L

n 
SW

Co
lu

m
bi

a 
St

 S
W

W
at

er
  S

t S
W

Sy
lv

es
te

r  
St

 S
W

fire lane
(176 - 207 stalls)*

BUIDLING AREA:

NEWHOUSE  =  56,000 gsf
PRITCHARD  =  63,500 gsf

PARKING STALL COUNT
(PHASE 1 DEVELOPMENT AREA)

existing to be demolished
Visitor Center Lot [82]
Newhouse Circle  [16] 
Press Houses  [48]
Water Street [11]
Pritchard Lot    [93]
Behind Cherberg [6]
Subtotal    [256]

new stalls added   
Visitor CenteBlock* 176 - 207
Pritchard Lot 35
Subtotal    211 - 242

Total shortfall [14 - 45]

*Parking stall range depends on the 
preservation of significant trees or 
not.

Approx. 60 additional stalls could 
be accomodated on the south side 
of the visitor center lot with the 
construction of a one story parking 
deck. 

(35 stalls)

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020



RAMP UP

RAMP UP

UP

PLANTER U
P

UP

U
P

U
P

LEG. TECH EQUIP, 
STAGE,STRG.

PRDCTN 
& DSGN

ELEC / MECH

ELEC / 
MECH

HEARING
ROOM

C.R. FILE
STORG

HOUSE OFFICE

HOUSE OFFICE

HOUSE OFFICE

HOUSE OFFICE

LOBBY

LOADING

(~40 STALLS)

ENTRY

ENTRY

LOADING

FLOOR 04
(9,635 nsf/ 14,000 gsf)

 SENATE SPACE 

PAGE
SCHL

LS
S 

A
D

M
IN

*

PRIMARY 
ENTRY

CAFE

SENATE OFFICE

SENATE OFFICE

SENATE SPACE 

SENATE OFFICE

SENATE OFFICE

SENATE SPACE 

LOBBY 

SECURITY

*NEW PRESS OFFICES LOCATED IN 
EXISTING LSS ADMIN LOCATION IN 
LEG BUILDING.

LT
TRAINNEWHOUSE

GROUND FLOOR
(8,693 nsf / 14,000 gsf)

FLOOR 02
(7,405 nsf / 14,000 gsf)

FLOOR 03
(9,965 nsf/ 14,000 gsf)

CODE REVISER
LEG. TECH
OFFICESPHTO

PRITCHARD

GROUND FLOOR 
(14,825 nsf / 21,700 gsf)

 BASEMENT
(6,850 nsf / 14,800 gsf)

FLOOR 02
(8,095 nsf / 13,500 gsf)

FLOOR 03
(7,915 nsf / 13,500 gsf)

N

OPTION A.2 - PROGRAMMING 

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

OPTION B.1 - SITE PLAN

THREE 
STORIES

THREE 
STORIES

16th Ave SW

15th Ave SW

Sid Snyder Ave SW

S Diagonal

Ca
pi

to
l W

ay
 S

Ch
er

ry
 L

n 
SW

Co
lu

m
bi

a 
St

 S
W

W
at

er
  S

t S
W

Sy
lv

es
te

r  
St

 S
W

fire lane
(176 - 207 stalls)*

BUIDLING AREA:

NEWHOUSE  =  42,000 gsf
PRITCHARD  =  63,000 gsf

PARKING STALL COUNT
(PHASE 1 DEVELOPMENT AREA)

existing to be demolished
Visitor Center Lot [82]
Newhouse Circle  [16] 
Press Houses  [48]
Water Street [11]
Pritchard Lot    [93]
Behind Cherberg [3]
Subtotal    [253]

new stalls added   
Visitor CenteBlock* 176 - 207
Pritchard Lot 30
Subtotal    206 - 237

Total shortfall [16 - 47]

*Parking stall range depends on the 
preservation of significant trees or 
not.

Approx. 60 additional stalls could 
be accomodated on the south side 
of the visitor center lot with the 
construction of a one story parking 
deck. 
 

(35 stalls)

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020



OPTION B.1 - PROGRAMMING 

 HOUSE OFFICE

 HOUSE SPACE  HS SPACE

HOUSE OFFICE

(~30 STALLS)
PRITCHARD

GROUND FLOOR
(10,228 nsf / 17,000 gsf)

FLOOR 02
(13,485 nsf / 23,000 gsf)

FLOOR 03
(15,910 nsf / 23,000 gsf)

LEG. TECH
OFFICES

HEARING
ROOM

CAFE LOBBY

CODE 
REVISER 

LT STAGE/STRG

LT. TRAIN

PHTO

ENTRY

ELEC / 
MECH

LSS 
ADMIN.*

C.R. 
FILE

STOR

PRIMARY 
ENTRYSENATE 

SPACE 

PAGE
SCHL

SENATE OFFICE

SENATE OFFICE

SENATE SPACE 

SENATE OFFICE

SENATE OFFICE

SENATE SPACE 

LOADING

NEWHOUSE

GROUND FLOOR
(8,005 nsf / 14,000 gsf)

FLOOR 02
(9,965 nsf/ 14,000 gsf)

FLOOR 03
(9,635 nsf/ 14,000 gsf)

*NEW PRESS OFFICES LOCATED IN 
EXISTING LSS ADMIN LOCATION IN 
LEG BUILDING.

N

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

OPTION B.2 - SITE PLAN

FOUR
 STORIES

THREE 
STORIES

16th Ave SW

15th Ave SW

Sid Snyder Ave SW

S Diagonal

Ca
pi

to
l W

ay
 S

Ch
er

ry
 L

n 
SW

Co
lu

m
bi

a 
St

 S
W

W
at

er
  S

t S
W

Sy
lv

es
te

r  
St

 S
W

fire lane
(176 - 207 stalls)*

BUIDLING AREA:

NEWHOUSE  =  56,000 gsf
PRITCHARD  =  63,000 gsf

PARKING STALL COUNT
(PHASE 1 DEVELOPMENT AREA)

existing to be demolished
Visitor Center Lot [82]
Newhouse Circle  [16] 
Press Houses  [48]
Water Street [11]
Pritchard Lot    [93]
Behind Cherberg [3]
Subtotal    [253]

new stalls added   
Visitor CenteBlock* 176 - 207
Pritchard Lot 30
Subtotal    206 - 237

Total shortfall [16 - 47]

*Parking stall range depends on the 
preservation of significant trees or 
not.

Approx. 60 additional stalls could 
be accomodated on the south side 
of the visitor center lot with the 
construction of a one story parking 
deck. 

(35 stalls)

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020



OPTION B.2 - PROGRAMMING 

PHTO ~1k sf

 HOUSE OFFICE

 HOUSE SPACE  HS SPACE

HOUSE OFFICE

(~30 STALLS)

LEG. TECH
OFFICES

HEARING
ROOM

CAFE LOBBY

CODE 
REVISER 

LT STAGE/STRG

LT. TRAIN

LOADING

ENTRY

ELEC / 
MECHC.R. 

FILE
STOR

PRITCHARD

GROUND FLOOR
(8,640 nsf / 17,000 gsf)

FLOOR 02
(13,485 nsf / 23,000 gsf)

FLOOR 03
(15,910 nsf / 23,000 gsf)

PRDCTN 
& DSGNENTRY

LOADING

FLOOR 04
(9,635 nsf/ 14,000 gsf)

 SENATE SPACE 

PAGE
SCHL

PRIMARY 
ENTRY

SENATE OFFICE

SENATE OFFICE

SENATE SPACE 

SENATE OFFICE

SENATE OFFICE

SENATE SPACE 

LOBBY 

SECURITY
NEWHOUSE

GROUND FLOOR
(8,693 nsf / 14,000 gsf)

FLOOR 02
(7,405 nsf / 14,000 gsf)

FLOOR 03
(9,965 nsf/ 14,000 gsf)

*NEW PRESS OFFICES LOCATED IN 
EXISTING LSS ADMIN LOCATION IN 
LEG BUILDING.

LS
S 

A
D

M
IN

*

N

LCM CCDAC MEETING  /  PHASE 2 PREDESIGN /  SEPTEMBER 17, 2020



 
 
 

Washington State Department of Enterprise Services Page 1 of 2 
 

Capitol Campus Advisory Committee 
September 17, 2020 
 
 
6- Tumwater Modular Building Predesign 
 
Purpose:   Action  
 
Sponsor(s):  Enterprise Services 
Department(s): Printing and Imaging and Central Mail Services  
Contact:  Ted Yoder, DES Project Manager, ted.yoder@des.wa.gov  
 
Presenters:  Ted Yoder, DES Project Manager  
 MariJane Kirk, DES Assistant Director Business Resources Division 
 Damien Bernard, DES Print and Mail Program Manager 
 Gary Scott, Rolluda Architects 
 
Description: 
 
The Department of Enterprise Services (DES) is facing limitations because the location of the 
two departments, Printing and Imaging and Consolidated Mail Services, are currently separated 
between two locations. Printing and Imaging is located in the Tumwater Modular Building while 
Consolidated Mail Services (CMS) is currently located in Commercial Building in Downtown 
Olympia. To improve work efficiency and cost-effectiveness, CMS and Printing and Imaging 
were evaluated for co-location at the existing Printing and Imaging building located at the 
Tumwater Modular Building, 7580 New Market Street Southwest, Tumwater, Washington 
 
In early 2020, the consultant team and representatives from both Printing and Imaging and 
Consolidated Mail Services, with guidance from DES, began the predesign process. The group 
considered 5 distinct alternatives, along with numerous, related sub-alternatives. Advantages 
and disadvantages of each option were thoroughly studied in addition to the “take no action” 
option. The investigation identified underutilized spaces at the Tumwater Modular Building as 
well as shared office, conference and break areas.  Space programming further identified the 
need for a secure, dedicated mail shipping and receiving area. The study group identified 2.1C 
as the preferred alternative that meets the space needs of both agencies and provides for 
greater security and workflow between the two programs. 
 
Mechanically, the Building HVAC equipment is nearing the end of its serviceable life. Further the 
State is mandating; RCW 70.235.050, Executive Order 20-01, HB 1257 and RCW 19.27A.200; 
the cessation of fossil fuels and implementation of upgraded energy usage systems. In keeping 
with the State’s preferences: 

• Existing HVAC systems to be demolished and replaced with entirely new HVAC 
equipment and distribution systems that meet the State’s preference to utilize heat 
pumps for heat and cooling.  

• Additional energy savings will be accomplished through additional exterior wall 
insulation, replacement of exterior glazing systems and R-38 roof insulation during the 
roof replacement. 

• The roof is also nearing the end of its serviceable life and will be replaced with a new 
single-ply membrane roof system along with upgraded insulation meeting current 

mailto:ted.yoder@des.wa.gov


Washington State Department of Enterprise Services Page 2 of 2 

energy code requirements. Co-ordination with the installation of new roof-mounted 
HVAC units will minimize the likelihood of leaks and damage to the new roof. 

 
Next Steps: 
 

• The predesign study will be submitted to the OFM for review and approval. 
 

• Once appropriations are approved and funding available, DES will begin the selection of 
an architectural and engineering consultant (A/E) and General Contractor/Construction 
Manager (GC/CM). 
 

• Following selection, DES will enter into negotiations with the most-qualified teams about 
the scope, schedule and budget. 
 

• Overall construction is projected to be 15 months with an overall project completion date 
of June, 2023. 

 
 
Requested Action: 
 
Move to recommend approval by the State Capitol Committee of the preferred development 
option, and related findings and recommendations, as outlined in the predesign study Tumwater 
Modular Building Print & Mail Facility as prepared by Rolluda Architects and dated 09/02/2020. 

 
 
List of Attachments: 
 
Attachment 5A: Tumwater Modular Building Print & Mail Facility - Predesign (excerpts) as 
prepared by Rolluda Architects and dated September 10, 2020 
 
 



Tumwater Modular 
Building 

Print & Mail Facility 

September 10, 2020

Prepared by: 

PREDESIGN STUDY

1.

Washington State Department of Enterprise Services (DES)
Jeff Whitehead, Maintenance & Repair Superintendent, Building and Grounds
Bob Covington, Director of Capitol Security and Visitor Services
Damien Bernard, Print and Mail Program Manager
John Miller, Outgoing Mail Manager
Ron Major, Resource Conservation Program Manager
Karen Martens, Property Manager, Building and Grounds
Matt Jones, Physical Security Manager
Jason Bippert, Production Support Manager
MariJane Kirk, EMS 04 AD, DES Services, BRD-Business Resources
Diane Wilkinson, Management Analyst 4, BRD-CMS Admin
Matthew Van Horn, Construction & Maintenance SUPT 3, B&G-M&R-Electric
Cherrie Imbao, Production Services Operation Manager, BRD-Production Manager Print & Imaging
Clayton Musgrove, Maintenance Mechanic 3, B7G-M&R-Electric
Kristty Redding, Distribution & Sortation Manager, BRD-CMS Distribution & Sortation
Tony Hall, PRT & Imaging Plant Manager, BRD-Plant Manager Print & Imaging

Project Stakeholders

Rolluda Architects
Tres West Engineers
AHBL Engineers
J B Iringan Consulting
Wetherholt and Associates

Design Consultant Team

Ted Yoder, Project Manager
Department of Enterprise Services
360.407.8247

Project Contact

The Department of Enterprise Services (DES) is facing limitations because the location of the two programs, 
Printing and Imaging and Consolidated Mail Services, is separated. Consolidated Mail Services (CMS) is cur-

-
ness, CMS and Printing and Imaging were assessed for their co-location at the existing Printing and Imaging 
building located at the Tumwater Modular Building, 7580 New Market Street Southwest, Tumwater, Washing-
ton

Description

Space available at current facilities does not support key services to CMS.

Located at Commercial Building, 618 7th Avenue SE, Olympia, CMS 
provides mail and distribution services for the State of Washington. This 
facility is currently using a building that is leased from a third party.

Consolidated Mail Services (CMS)

P&I - large scale printers

2.

Located at the Tumwater Modular Building, 7580 New Market St SW, 
-

vices for the State of Washington. This facility occupies a spacious 
industrial building owned by DES.

Printing and Imaging 

The predesign study will look at solving the spatial layout of the existing Tumwater Printing and Imaging Facility. 

The proposed design includes combining the high bay area for Printing Service and utilizing the available spaces in the low bay area for CMS. 
The new structure at the northeast corner of the existing building will serve as the Secured Loading Dock and Parking for CMS Distribution.

The predesign report represents a powerful programmatic opportunity to meet the facilities and support function needs of both Printing and Imaging and CMS with a 

With careful planning, the major building components, and systems required by the two separate programs can be shared.

Opportunity for Solutions

Solutions



3.

Corridors adjacent to Presort and Insert area are combined with the space to add more spaces. 
The existing conference room combined with State Library Storage will become the Presort area. Secured Loading Dock Parking is 90’x140’ with 12’ deep Loading 
dock

Option 2.1A:

Advantages 
Relocation of existing transformer and generator. 
State Library Storage move out schedule. 
Cost of fully enclosed loading dock area. 

Better layout to accommodate facility needs. 
Utilitizes existing State Library Storage space.
Construction may be phased to minimize disruptions 
to ongoing operations. 
Minimizes exposure of protected information and po-
tential security breaches. 

Disadvantages 

This option is similar to option 2.1A in terms of the interior layout. The difference is the Secure Loading Dock Parking area is not enclosed anymore. 
Option 2.1C: Preferred Option: 

Better layout to accommodate facility needs.
Utilizes existing State Library Storage space.
Large covered loading dock area.
Construction may be phased to minimize disruptions to 
ongoing operations. 
Minimizes exposure of protected information and poten-
tial security breaches.

Advantages 

Relocation of existing transformer and generator. 
State Library Storage move out schedule. 

Disadvantages 

4.

Option 4:
Develop a new sortation area on the East side of the building. 
Build a new Secure Distribution Parking on the east side of Distribution Dock. 
Insert and Presort area are combined in a new space above the Sortation area, Distribution Dock & Distribution Parking.

Advantages Disadvantages 
No need to move any existing 
facilities.

All new mail facilities will be con-
centrated in one area at east side 
of building.

Need to construct a new space for In-

Machines at Insert & Presort area will 

Requires addition of lifts, elevators and 
extensive materials handling equipment 
to process mail on a seperate level. 

Option 5:
Develop a new sortation area along the East side of the building. 
Build a new Secure Distribution Parking on the east side of Distribution Dock. 

Advantages Disadvantages 

new mail facilities. 
Extensive demolition and large scale relo-
cation of infastructure resulting in extended 
service disruptions.  

Requires addition of lifts, elevators and 
extensive materials handling equipment to 
process mail on a seperate level. 

Does not mitigate current level of risk to 
protected information and potential security 
breaches. 



Option 6:

Option 6 is to provide no action and continue operations from leased properties in the existing space. 
No construction of CMS and Printing and Imaging.

No Action Option

No additional capital expenditures at this time.
facilities. 

Continued physical separation of Print and CMS facilities.

Advantages Disadvantages 

5.

Project Schedule

A. Assumes Design Build construction

E. Site work and relocation of transformer and generator

Cost Estimate Summary

6.



7.

Q & A



 
 
 

Washington State Department of Enterprise Services Page 1 of 3 
 

Capitol Campus Design Advisory Committee 
September 17, 2020 
 
 
7- Capital Projects Update 
 
Purpose:  Informational 
 
Sponsor(s):   Bill Frare, FPS Assistant Director, and  
 
Department(s): Department of Enterprise Services 
 
Presenter(s):   Bill Frare, 360-407-8239, bill.frare@des.wa.gov  
   Hamed Khalili, 360-407-7979, hamed.khalili@des.wa.gov 
 
Description: 
CCDAC has expressed interest in Enterprise Services providing routine status updates on 
several key capital improvement projects. The status and significant accomplishments are as 
follows for these key projects:  
 
Building Exterior Improvements- Capitol Court (Presentation) 

• Restoration of the building’s historic windows was completed. 
• Repair and cleaning of the building’s stone exterior façade was completed. 
• Scaffolding and mesh will be removed by mid-September 2020 
• Planned completion is end of September/October 2020.  

 
Capitol Child Care Center (Presentation) 

• This design-build contract is underway under agreement with Walsh-Mahlum. 
• A final Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) was established for the project in early 

summer 2020. 
• Notice to proceed with construction was issued and work on site is underway. 
• Substantial completion planned for April 2021, and final completion in June 2021. 

 
L&I/WSDA Laboratory and Training Center (Presentation) 

• The Architect selected was ZGF Architects. 
• The GC/CM selected was Korsmo Construction. 
• Design Development is underway and to be completed in October 2020. 
• Permit Submission planned for January 2021 and 100% CDs in April 2021. 
• A Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Contract to be executed in April 2021. 
• Substantial completion planned for August 2022, and final completion in October 2022.   

 

  

mailto:bill.frare@des.wa.gov


Washington State Department of Enterprise Services Page 2 of 3 

Other Key Capital Projects include: 
 
Conservatory Demolition 

• Engineering plans and estimates to demolish the existing above-ground structure is 
complete. 

• DES entered into a Job Order Contract to relocate utilities and begin demolition of the 
conservatory.  Initial demolition work will include removal of the glass and metal 
structure (oldest section of the Conservatory) to alleviate significant safety concerns. 

• Funds are insufficient to remove the entire Conservatory building. Portions of the first 
floor and foundation will remain until future funding is secured.  

• DES has requested additional capital funding to complete building demolition efforts and 
begin preliminary assessment of slope stabilization in 21-23 Capital Budget Request. 

• Future development of the Conservatory site will be subject to slope stabilization. 
• Long-range use of the Conservatory site has not been determined and subject to future 

planning efforts.  
 
Legislative Building Exterior Preservation Cleaning (Legislative Dome) 

• The dome of the Legislative Building was cleaned in 2018. 
• DES requested the reallocation of remaining funds to repair roof, stonework, and repair 

the exterior bronze doors and skylights. 
• Design plans were complete for Roof Repairs, and bids were received in August 2020. 
• Bids exceeded the total funding available. 
• DES has reprioritized roof repairs to address significant leaks and necessary repairs, 

and will be rebid for work to proceed in fall of 2020. 
• The design and construction of exterior bronze door repairs along with additional 

stonework and plaza skylight repairs have been deferred due to limited funding 
available. 

 
Legislative Building Cleaning - Insurance Building 

• This effort includes the cleaning of the stone façade and very minor stone repair. 
• Design and bidding efforts are complete. 
• Construction will proceed into late fall/early winter of 2020. 

 
Arc-Flash Study 

• Study involves safety assessment of high-energy electrical panels within the many 
buildings on campus. 

• An electrical engineering consultant was selected and is under contract.  
• Site reviews are complete, and the ARC Flash Warning labels are being installed on the 

high risk panels. 
• Training is schedule for November 2020. 

 
East Plaza Waterproofing and Elevator Repairs (Phase 5B) 

• Replacement of the waterproof membrane above the East Plaza Garage is complete. 
• Landscaping improvements are complete and walkways are open to the public, and are 

consistent with the vision of the East Capitol Campus Plaza - EDAW Plan). 
• Electrical improvements within the East Plaza Garage are nearing completion. 
• Lighting on Levels A thru D within the garage are nearing completion. 
• DES has requested additional capital funds to complete lighting improvements on Levels 

E and F. 
• DES has requested funding for the remainder of East Plaza- Phase 5 as part of the 

agency’s 21-23 Capital Budget Request. This work would include additional 
waterproofing of the garage, and include improvements to the southwestern landscape 
area over the garage and the historic Halprin Fountain. 

  
  



Washington State Department of Enterprise Services Page 3 of 3 

Next Century Campus Study 
• CCDAC was briefed of project predesign efforts in February and March 2019. 
• MENG Analysis has completed the Next Century Campus Study Predesign, which 

supports the previously prepared investment-grade audit. 
• Submission of Predesign to OFM for final review and approval is pending. 
• Project is complete and in close-out process. 

 
Insurance/Cherberg Roof Replacements 

• Project is complete and in close-out process. 
 
Next Steps: 
• Enterprise Services will provide project updates to CCDAC and SCC at future regularly 

scheduled meetings. 
 
Requested Action(s): 
No actions are requested at this time. 
 
List of Attachments: 
Attachment 7A: Building Exterior Improvements, Capitol Court- Project Update Presentation 
Attachment 7B: Capitol Campus Childcare Center- Project Update Presentation 
Attachment 7C: L&I-WSDA Lab & Training Center- Project Update Presentation 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 



• Restoration of the building’s historic windows & Doors.

• Facade restoration includes cleaning, repair of the historic sandstone masonry, securing 
joints where pieces of sandstone meet (e.g. tuck-pointing).

• Improving the anchoring for the sandstone veneer (where necessary).

• Planned completion is end of September/October 2020

Project Overview

Capital Court , Olympia, WA

STONE DISPLACEMENT
• Large stones of a column were displaced from the 2001 earthquake.
• Removed each column stone and replace it back to its original location.
• Stones were anchored to the building structure.







L&I / WSDA LABORATORY AND TRAINING CENTER

  location:   7-acre undeveloped parcel in Tumwater alongside other State facilities 
  program:     53,154 square feet of Laboratories, Office, Training Classrooms
  capital budget:  $53,203,000          total construction cost target = $39,000,000
  performance goals:   LEED Gold (projected), Net-Zero-Ready
  design architect:  ZGF Architects

Project Site

L&I

SITE / FLOOR PLANLOCATION PLAN

DOC

TYPICAL LABORATORY  ‘FOREST PAVILION’ LUNCH ROOM

NW OVERVIEW-  BUILDING ENTRY


	1 CCDAC Sep 17 2020 Agenda- 09112020 FINAL
	2 CCDAC Feb 20, 2020 Minutes- DRAFT as posted on 043020
	Draft Minutes
	MEMBERS PRESENT: MEMBERS PRESENT:
	Majid Jamali, Department of Enterprise Services    Bob Willyerd, Department of Enterprise Services
	Linda Kent, Department of Enterprise Services    John Wynands, Department of Transportation
	Welcome and Introductions, Announcements & Approval of Agenda
	East Plaza Water Infiltration Repairs (5B) – Information
	Adjournment - Action

	3- CCDAC SCC Actions- Agenda Summary- 09112020 FINAL
	Capitol Campus Advisory Committee
	State Capital Committee Actions

	Description:
	Next Steps:
	Requested Action:
	List of Attachments:

	3A- CCDAC Approved SCC Policies and Procedures (revised)- 08102020 FINAL
	4- CCDAC OIC DCYF Predesign- Agenda Summary- 0911202 FINAL
	Capitol Campus Advisory Committee
	Description:
	Next Steps:
	Requested Action:
	List of Attachments:

	4B- CCDAC OIC DCYF Predesign- Presentation - 09112020 (8x11)- 09112020 FINAL
	5- CCDAC LCM Predesign- Agenda Summary- 09112020 FINAL
	Capitol Campus Advisory Committee
	Description:
	Next Steps:
	Requested Action:
	List of Attachments:

	5B- CCDAC LCM Predesign Update Presentation (8x11)- 09112020 FINAL
	6- CCDAC Modular Building Predesign- Agenda Summary- 09112020 FINAL
	Capitol Campus Advisory Committee
	5- Tumwater Modular Building Predesign

	Description:
	Next Steps:
	Requested Action:
	List of Attachments:

	6B- CCDAC Tumwater Mod Bldg Presentation (8x11)- 09112020 FINAL
	7- CCDAC Capital Project Summary - 090920 DRAFT
	Capitol Campus Design Advisory Committee
	7- Capital Projects Update

	Description:
	Next Steps:
	Requested Action(s):
	List of Attachments:

	7Aa CCDAC Bldg Ext- Capital Court (8x11) - 09112020 FINAL
	7Ba CCDAC Capitol Childcare Center Update (8x11)- 09112020 FINAL
	7Ca CCDAC L&I-WSDA Lab & Training Ctr Update (8X11)- 09112020 FINAL
	3- CCDAC SCC Actions- Agenda Summary- 09112020 FINAL.pdf
	Capitol Campus Advisory Committee
	3- State Capital Committee Actions

	Description:
	Next Steps:
	Requested Action:
	List of Attachments:

	4- CCDAC OIC DCYF Predesign- Agenda Summary- 0911202 FINAL.pdf
	Capitol Campus Advisory Committee
	Description:
	Next Steps:
	Requested Action:
	List of Attachments:

	5- CCDAC LCM Predesign- Agenda Summary- 09112020 FINAL.pdf
	Capitol Campus Advisory Committee
	Description:
	Next Steps:
	Requested Action:
	List of Attachments:

	6- CCDAC Modular Building Predesign- Agenda Summary- 09112020 FINAL.pdf
	Capitol Campus Advisory Committee
	6- Tumwater Modular Building Predesign

	Description:
	Next Steps:
	Requested Action:
	List of Attachments:




